Council

Date:

Time:

Venue:

Meeting
Details:

Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

To all Members
THURSDAY, 25 FEBRUARY of the CounCil

2016
7.30 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBER -
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8
1UW

Members of the Public and
Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Wednesday, 17 February
2016

Contact: Lloyd White, Head of
Democratic Services

Tel: 01895 556743

Email: lwhite®hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=117&Year=0

Lloyd White

Putting our residents first

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meeting
Watch a broadcast of this

You can watch this meeting on the Council's meeting on the Council's YouTube
YouTube channel, live or archived. Channel: Hillingdon London

Residents and the media are also welcome to

i ) ’ Those attending should be aware that the
attend in person, and if they wish, report on the Council will film and record proceedings
pub"c part of the meeting_ Any individual or for both official record and resident digital

organisation may record or film proceedings as engagement in democracy.

long as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. When present in the room, silent mode should be
enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking \'2\./' -

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with the
Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk

away. Limited parking is available at the Civic s e

Centre. For details on availability and how to book a s:;z:; stam:-ns _

parking space, please contact Democratic Services. Centre thF"’
Please enter from the Council’s main reception ' )

where you will be directed to the Committee Room.

Accessibility Crickectiid ha
For accessibility options regarding this agenda ok
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

Prayers

To be said by Father Nicholas Schofield.

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes 1-10

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2016

3 Declarations of Interest

To note any declarations of interest in any matter before the Council

4  Mayor's Announcements
5 Report of the Head of Democratic Services 11-18

6 London Pensions Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) 19 - 94
To consider whether to participate in the establishment of the London CIV.

7  General Fund Revenue Budget, Housing Revenue Account and 95-100
Capital Programme 2016/2017

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 will apply to the
recommendations of this item. Any Member who is more than two months
in arrears with their Council Tax or has arrears of Council Tax must declare
that fact and must not vote on this item.

Budget Conflict Resolution Procedures — Council is asked to consider the
Cabinet’s proposals. It may adopt the proposals, submit objections to Cabinet or
invite the Cabinet to make amendments specified by Council. If Council votes to
object to the Cabinet proposals or to invite Cabinet to make amendments then
the Conflict Resolution Procedure will come into operation.

The Council meeting will be adjourned while a special meeting of the Cabinet is
held, after which the Council will resume and consider any revised proposals
submitted by the Cabinet or the reasons why the Cabinet disagrees with
Council’s objections or proposed amendments. The budget would then be open
for debate and amendment until a final decision is made.

Members are asked to note that, in accordance with the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, recorded
votes will be taken at the annual budget setting meeting on any motion,
amendment to motion or substantive motion regarding the General Fund
Revenue Budget, Housing Revenue Account and Capital Programme.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

Minutes

COUNCIL

14 January 2016 HILI DON

LONDON
Meeting held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre, High
Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Councillor George Cooper (Mayor)
Councillor John Hensley (Deputy Mayor)

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillors: Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana lan Edwards Carol Melvin
Lynne Allen Tony Eginton Douglas Mills
Teji Barnes Duncan Flynn Richard Mills
Jonathan Bianco Neil Fyfe John Morgan
Mohinder Birah Janet Gardner John Morse
Wayne Bridges Narinder Garg June Nelson
Tony Burles Dominic Gilham Susan O'Brien
Keith Burrows Raymond Graham John Oswell
Roy Chamdal Becky Haggar Jane Palmer
Alan Chapman Henry Higgins Ray Puddifoot MBE
Judith Cooper Patricia Jackson John Riley
Philip Corthorne Phoday Jarjussey Robin Sansarpuri
Peter Curling Allan Kauffman Scott Seaman-Digby
Catherine Dann Judy Kelly David Simmonds CBE
Peter Davis Manjit Khatra Jagjit Singh
Nick Denys Kuldeep Lakhmana  Brian Stead
Jazz Dhillon Eddie Lavery Jan Sweeting
Jas Dhot Richard Lewis Michael White
Janet Duncan Michael Markham David Yarrow
Beulah East Peter Money

OFFICERS PRESENT: Fran Beasley, Jean Palmer, Paul Whaymand, Tony Zaman,
Glen Egan, Lloyd White, Nancy LeRoux, Chris Mayo, Mark Shanahan, Mark
Braddock, Morgan Einon, Beth Rainey and Nikki O'Halloran

14. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Crowe, Dheer, Duducu and
Khursheed. The Mayor asked that Members' best wishes be passed to Councillor
Khursheed for a speedy recovery.

15. | MINUTES (Agenda Item 2)

It was noted that, although Councillor Eginton had passed his apologies to his Group
for the Council meeting on 5 November 2015, these had not been passed on at the
meeting and, therefore, the minutes were a correct account.

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2015 be
agreed as a correct record.

Page 1



16.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (Agenda Item 4)

The Mayor outlined a number of events that he and the Mayoress had attended over
the Christmas period. He noted that Hillingdon had won the first prize of £10k in the
Lord Mayor of London's New Year's Day Parade and congratulated those that had
taken part in it.

In addition to a forthcoming quiz night, clay pigeon shooting, a concert and a Magna
Carta, Monarchy and Commonwealth event, the Mayor noted that Councillor Singh
would be completing four marathons in four days to raise money for the Mayor's
charities. He encouraged Members to support these fund raising events.

17.

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES (Agenda ltem 5)

Councillor Puddifoot moved the recommendations as set out in the Order of Business.
The motion was seconded by Councillor Simmonds and it was:

RESOLVED: That:

i) the recent urgent decisions taken be noted,;

ii) the Council's Constitution be amended to reflect the merger of the
posts of Director of Adult Social Care Services and Director of Children
and Young People’s Services into the new post of Corporate Director
of Social Care with the combined delegations and responsibilities
thereof, including the creation of a new combined Directorate of Social
Care; and

iiij upon the recommendation of the Conservative Group, Councillor
Higgins replace Councillor Melvin as a Member of the:

e Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview
Committee;

¢ North Planning Committee; and

e Major Applications Planning Committee.

18.

COUNCIL TAX BASE AND BUSINESS RATES FORECAST 2016/17 (Agenda ltem
6)

Councillor Bianco moved, and Councillor Puddifoot seconded, the recommendation
as set out in the Order of Business.

Councillor Eginton queried the contents of the report with reference to the availability
of the results of the consultation exercise and the time that Members had to consider
this information. It was confirmed that the results of the consultation were available
online as a background document, although there had been a slight problem with the
online link. Members were satisfied that there was sufficient information within the
report to consider the item.

Councillor Eginton moved an amendment to delete recommendation d) and amend
the figure in recommendation b) from 95,770 to 94,859. The amendment was
seconded by Councillor Morse. Following debate (Councillors Curling, Puddifoot and
Simmonds), the amendment was put to the vote and lost.

The original motion was put to a recorded vote:

Those voting for: The Mayor (Councillor Cooper), the Deputy Mayor (Councillor
Hensley), Councillors Barnes, Bianco, Bridges, Burrows, Chamdal, Chapman, J

Page 2




Cooper, Corthorne, Dann, Davis, Denys, Edwards, Flynn, Fyfe, Gilham, Graham,
Haggar, Higgins, Jackson, Kauffman, Kelly, Lavery, Lewis, Markham, Melvin, D Mills,
R Mills, Morgan, O’Brien, Palmer, Puddifoot, Riley, Seaman-Digby, Simmonds, Stead,
White and Yarrow.

Those voting against: Councillors Ahmad-Wallana, Allen, Birah, Burles, Curling,
Dhillon, Dhot, Duncan, East, Eginton, Gardner, Garg, Jarjussey, Khatra, Lakhmana,
Money, Morse, Nelson, Oswell, Sansarpuri, Singh and Sweeting.

The motion was carried and it was:
RESOLVED: That:

a) the report of the Corporate Director of Finance for the calculation of the
Council Tax Base and the Business Rates Forecast, be approved,;

b) in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base)
(England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by the London
Borough of Hillingdon as its Council Tax Base for 2016/17 shall be 95,770;

c) the Corporate Director of Finance be authorised to submit the 2016/17
NNDR1 return to the Department of Communities & Local Government
(CLG) and the Greater London Authority (GLA) in line with the business
rates forecast contained within this report; and

d) the amended Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2016/17 be approved with

the following changes to be effective from 1 April 2016:

e the maximum amount of reduction a working age household can
receive is reduced to 75% of the council tax liability from 80%;

e the maximum amount of reduction a vulnerable household can receive
is reduced to 90% of the council tax liability from 100%; and

e align the scheme with recent and impending welfare reforms, including
changes to Housing Benefit.

19.

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME (Agenda Item 7)

Councillor Burrows moved the motion, which was seconded by Councillor White, and
it was:

RESOLVED: That the revised Local Development Scheme be adopted with
effect from 17 January 2016.

20.

STATEMENTS OF LICENSING AND GAMBLING POLICIES (Agenda Item 8)

Councillor Bianco moved the motion, which was seconded by Councillor Lewis, and it
was:

RESOLVED: That:
a) the Statement of Licensing Policy be adopted with effect 17 January 2016
to 17 January 2021; and
b) the Gambling Policy be adopted with effect 17 January 2016 to 17
January 2019.

Page 3




21.

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS (Agenda ltem 9)

9.2 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR DAVIS TO THE LEADER OF
THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT

"Given that you have long supported local residents as regards inappropriate
developments, are you aware that Powerday have submitted another planning
application for a material recycling facility on the Coal Yard site in Yiewsley?"

Councillor Puddifoot confirmed that the administration's commitment to inappropriate
development was as strong as ever. The new planning application would be subject
to extensive consultation and Powerday would need to follow due process. The
planning application would be considered on its planning merits without any political
interference and, as such, it would not be appropriate for him to comment on the
merits or otherwise of the application. The Council had listened carefully to its
residents when making planning decisions in relation to the Tavistock Road site in the
past and, as the application had been submitted just before Christmas, additional time
would be allowed for consultation to be undertaken. Councillor Puddifoot urged local
residents to put their views in writing so that these could be fully considered by the
Council as part of its decision making process.

There was no supplementary question.

9.1 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR EGINTON TO THE LEADER OF
THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT

"How will the "freeze" in Council Tax in 2016/17 in Hillingdon affect vulnerable and
disadvantaged households?"

Councillor Puddifoot advised that, from April 2016, Council Tax would have been
frozen for the last eight years, providing residents with an in year saving of £191 and
a cumulative saving of £840 per household. Council Tax had been frozen for those
aged 65+ for the last ten years, providing those residents with an in year saving of
£245 and a cumulative saving of £1,350. Furthermore, the administration proposed
that Council freeze Council Tax for those aged 65+ until 2019/2020.

The main changes to the Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme would only affect
working age claimants. Pensioners, war widows, war disabled and armed forces
compensation scheme applicants would continue to receive support as they did now.
The Council would be bringing the support levels roughly in line with those of Harrow
and Ealing councils which would mean that the weekly Council Tax payment for a
working age households in a band D property would increase by £1.35 per week.
Since CTR had been introduced, by the end of 2016/2017, Harrow CTR clients would
have paid £524.26 more than Hillingdon CTR clients and Ealing clients would have
paid an additional £23.

This proposal would lower the level of financial support available to working aged
households in receipt of any disability premium from 100% to 90%. This would mean
that claimants would become liable for the payment of 10% of their Council Tax
liability and was in line with many other local authority schemes that required
everyone to pay something towards the service they received, but still continued to
provide a significant amount of protection to disabled applicants or families. This
widened the number of claimants contributing towards the Council Tax and, in doing
so, stopped a disproportionate burden falling on all other working aged Council Tax

Page 4




reduction recipients.

Under this proposal, the weekly Council Tax payment for a claimant in a band D
property would be £2.69 whilst Harrow residents would have paid £636 more by the
end of 2016/2017. If Ealing froze its Council Tax and did not impose a 2% social care
precept, its residents would pay 49p less per week than Hillingdon residents.

Z2K had launched its campaign about Ealing Council's Council Tax support cuts. Of
the eight London boroughs proposing cuts this year, Z2K believed that Ealing's was
the worst, putting up the poorest residents' tax by the back door with 5,114 CTS
claimants falling into arrears in the last year. Furthermore, Ealing could retain the
option to increase or decrease the minimum payment of up to 5% in April 2017.
Councillor Puddifoot advised that the recorded vote in relation to agenda item 6 would
be passed to the Conservative Members at the London Borough of Ealing.

By way of a supplementary question, Councillor Eginton asked, bearing in mind the
increasing deficit in Government funding, whether Councillor Puddifoot could confirm
that no further changes would be made to the CRT scheme which would further
impoverish the poor and vulnerable.

Councillor Puddifoot advised that, like many councils across London, including Ealing
and Harrow, the Council would not subsidise the Government's benefits cuts regime.
If the Council did not receive the funding, it would consider passporting the cuts on.

9.3 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR BRIDGES TO THE CABINET
MEMBER FOR EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES - COUNCILLOR
SIMMONDS

"Would the Cabinet Member please tell me what progress is being made in
negotiations with the Education Funding Agency (EFA) to ensure appropriate drop-off
and pick-up arrangements at the new Abbotsfield and Swakeleys schools, as | am
concerned that, unlike the Council-managed project to rebuild Northwood school, the
EFA are causing extensive delays?"

Councillor Simmonds advised that he was aware that the Ward Councillors
(Councillors Bridges, Chapman and Jackson) had been forthright in representing their
residents in relation to this issue. He noted that the Council was seeing vulnerable
residents sometimes having to pay additional taxation as a result of the debt left by
the last Labour Government and, despite the austerity measures put in place, the
surface of that debt was just being scratched.

The Government, through its Building Schools for the Future programme (BSF), had
encouraged local authorities to spend to ensure future school places provision.
Hillingdon's spend had increased from £100m to £150m to £200m and the Council
had anticipated receiving the money back from Government. However, there was a
massive reduction in the resources available to the Labour Government towards the
end of its administration and complete recompense had not been forthcoming. This
had affected a number of schools in Hillingdon including Northwood, Abbotsfield and
Swakeleys schools. The Council had engaged with the new Government to prioritise
the work needed on those schools that were in the worst condition to ensure that
Hillingdon was in a position to manage these projects to a high standard and deliver
them on time in a way that met the needs of its residents.

After Hillingdon had made its representation, a Liberal Democrat Minister had made

Page 5




the decision to allow the Council to manage the Northwood School rebuild project
which was now underway and would provide a good quality new school that would be
delivered on time.

With regard to Abbotsfield and Swakeleys, ministers had taken the decision to let the
Education Funding Agency (EFA) manage the project. This had resulted in a litany of
delays and some obfuscation which had frustrated Ward Councillors and residents.
However, the EFA had now advised that it was ready to start work and officers had
managed to ensure that there would be access to the site from Sutton Court Road as
well as a proper drop off area located within the site so that local residents would be
less affected by parents dropping off/picking up their children (this had already been
approved by the Council's Planning Committee). It had been frustrating that the EFA
had seemed unwilling to take into account how the provision of an onsite drop off
point would impact on the quality of residents' lives. Councillor Simmonds paid tribute
to the work that the officers had undertaken to secure the onsite drop off point to
ensure that residents' needs were safeguarded.

There was no supplementary question.

9.7 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR LAKHMANA TO THE LEADER
OF THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT

"Can the Leader of the Council please update us on the feedback from the NHS Trust
(Hillingdon) on the use of 'Hillingdon First Cards' in Hillingdon Hospital car parks?"

Councillor Puddifoot advised that, following the Council meeting on 16 September
2015, he spoken to the Chief Executive of The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust about a number of the administration's suggestions to address parking issues,
including the possibility of residents being able to use the Hillingdon First Card in the
hospital car parks. The issue had been discussed at the Trust Board's December
meeting where it had been agreed to fund a scheme to deliver 48 new ground level
spaces on the hospital site and segregate staff and visitor parking, subject to planning
permission. However, there were no plans to offer Hillingdon First cardholders a
concessionary rate.

There was no supplementary question.

9.4 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR PALMER TO THE CABINET
MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY, COMMERCE AND REGENERATION -
COUNCILLOR D.MILLS

"Can the Cabinet Member outline the additional sports opportunities residents will
have with the arrival in the Borough of "Make a Splash" and "Street Velodrome"?"

Councillor D Mills advised that "Make a Splash" was a Mayor of London's initiative to
encourage people to take up swimming. This would be the second year that
Hillingdon had taken part in the initiative. In 2015, the event had been held in the
Barnhill area over a 6-8 week period and had been successful in getting many people
back into, or starting, swimming. This year, the event was being hosted by Harefield
Academy until 24 March 2016 and would be officially opened at the end of January
2016 by an Olympic swimmer and the Mayor of London.

To encourage residents to swim, free swimming sessions were available on
Saturdays and during the school half term. It was anticipated that approximately

Page 6




1,200 people would be targeted in the Borough during the initiative.

Street Velodrome would set up at Fassnidge Park for three days in March 2016 to
provide a cycling track facility for the local community to encourage all abilities. A
range of organised and competitive events had been put together, the final day of
which would be televised. It was anticipated that the event would encourage
approximately 3,000 residents to either get back into cycling or take it up as a more
permanent activity.

"Make a Splash" and "Street Velodrome" were just two examples of the Council
encouraging residents to take up physical activity. The latest exercise campaign
supported by the Council was "This Hillingdon Girl Can" which would have sessions
running from February through the summer to encourage mothers and daughters to
exercise together.

There was no supplementary question.

9.8 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR SWEETING TO THE LEADER
OF THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT

"What are the Council’s plans for the redevelopment of the Swimming Pool site in
Yiewsley, which was given to the people of Yiewsley for leisure purposes and
protected by covenant?"

Councillor Puddifoot advised that the property consisting of Yiewsley recreation
ground and the Yiewsley swimming pool site had not been gifted but had been
conveyed to the Yiewsley and West Drayton District Council in 1934 for £450 with a
protected covenant. This covenant restricted the use of the land and, amongst other
things, would allow it to be used for the "purpose of public walks and pleasure
grounds". Councillor Puddifoot advised that the Council would be applying for release
from the covenant under provisions in the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).
As soon as the plans were ready to be made public in relation to the proposals for the
site, Council would be informed.

By way of a supplementary question, Councillor Sweeting asked whether the
residents of Yiewsley and West Drayton would be consulted to gain their views in
relation to the future use of this important community asset before any decisions were
made.

Councillor Puddifoot advised that the elections held every four years enabled
residents to choose who they thought was best to represent them. Individuals would
have the opportunity to comment in relation to any associated planning application.

9.5 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR KAUFFMAN TO THE LEADER
OF THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT

"Would the Leader of the Council please let us know how much the Council received
for recycled textiles in the last financial year?"

Councillor Puddifoot advised that the market value of textiles had fallen since
September 2013 from £300 to £170 per tonne. In 2014/2015, the average textile
collection rate in the Borough was 5% tonnes each month producing a receipt of
£17,100.

Page 7




By way of a supplementary question, Councillor Kauffman asked whether there were
any plans to use these funds.

Councillor Puddifoot advised that, although this was a valuable service to residents, it
did impact on charity shops. As such, he would propose to Cabinet that the receipt be
doubled to £34,200 and donate this amount to the Mayor's charity.

9.6 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR FYFE TO THE CABINET
MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY, COMMERCE AND REGENERATION -
COUNCILLOR D.MILLS

"Residents and traders are already seeing the benefits of our town centre
improvement programme in Hayes. What further improvements are still to be carried
out?"

Councillor D Mills advised that the first phase of work to modernise and refresh Hayes
town centre had started in February 2015 and was on track for completion in the
spring. As a result of the work already undertaken, traffic flow had improved.

It was anticipated that the second phase would start in April/May 2016. This phase
would see the introduction of promotional signature features such as a new canopy to
replace the bandstand and a distinctive new clock near the station. Following the
clean up of the Botwell Canal Bridge in October 2015, the Council had been in
detailed discussions with Transport for London (TfL) and Crossrail in relation to
funding further improvements to the bridge and to improve the commute from the
station towards Coldharbour Lane. Discussions had been undertaken with TfL and
Great West Railway (and funding had been allocated by TfL) to refurbish and replace
the EMI site railings outside Hayes train station.

By way of a supplementary question, Councillor Fyfe asked what other town areas
would receive new investment.

Councillor D Mills advised that, following the successful development of Ruislip
Manor, Northwood Hills and Harefield, the investment had been signed off and work
was due to start soon in Belmont Parade (Barnhill Ward) to improve the area outside
the Lidl supermarket. Furthermore, Cavendish and Eastcote & East Ruislip Ward
Councillors would be contacted in the next month in relation to proposals for Eastcote
High Street.

Discussions were underway with TfL to invest £2m in Uxbridge town centre which, it
was anticipated, would attract additional private investment. It was noted that large
retailers had already expressed an interest in opening stores in Uxbridge as a result
of the commitment from the local authority. As well as providing an increased choice,
residents would also benefit from new employment opportunities in the area.

Discussions continued with Crossrail in relation to utilising funds in the West Drayton
station area. Councillor D Mills advised that the Council was only half way through
the administration and those areas that had not yet been addressed had not been
forgotten.

22.

MOTIONS (Agenda Item 10)

Councillor Morse moved, and Councillor Lakhmana seconded, the following motion:

Page 8




"That this Council will amend Part Four, Schedule D (Access to Information
Procedure Rules), Paragraph 22 (Filming, Recording and Reporting of Meetings), of
the Council Constitution, to include the following additional paragraphs:

i)  The Council will make reasonable facilities available to the public to assist in
recording meetings as far as is practical.

i) The Council has no responsibility or liability for, any filmed/ recorded/
photographed material made by any persons or its subsequent use or
publication.

iii) The Council will record Full Council and Cabinet Meetings to maintain a raw,
unedited film and audio record of proceedings. The content of the
recordings will be retained for 5 years and be available to all residents of the
borough and councillors to provide full public access to proceedings."

Following debate (Councillors Bianco, Curling, Oswell and Puddifoot), the motion was
put to the vote and lost.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.10 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Lloyd White, Head of Democratic Services on 01895
556743. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and
Members of the Public.

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 5

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Reporting Officer: Head of Democratic Services

() URGENT IMPLEMENTATION OF DECISIONS

RECOMMENDATION: That the Urgency decisions detailed below be noted.

Information

1. The Constitution allows a Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision to be implemented
before the expiry of the 5 day call-in provided there is agreement from the Chief
Executive and the Chairman of the Executive Scrutiny Committee to waive this. All
such decisions are to be reported for information only to the next full Council

meeting.

2. Recently the following decisions have been made using the urgency procedures:

DDat_e .°f Decision Type / Nature of Decision Decision-Maker
ecision
. : , Leader of the Council /
07/01/2016 | SaPital Release of for the Missouri Cabinet Member for Finance,
Court Communal Boiler Replacement . :
Property & Business Services
Associated Award of a Works Contract | Leader of the Council /
07/01/2016 | for the Missouri Court Boiler Cabinet Member for Finance,
Replacement. Property & Business Services
e o e | Leader of e Councl
11/01/2016 | IMProvemen P Cabinet Member for Finance,
Borough's Highways Programme . :
Property & Business Services
2015/16.
Contract Award. and Capital Release Leader of the Council /
towards the Universal Infant Free ; .
14/01/2016 . . Cabinet Member for Finance,
School Meals and kitchen improvements . :
) Property & Business Services
at 6 schools in the Borough.
Appointment of Contractor and capital
e e | Le2der f e Councl
15/01/2016 . . . Cabinet Member for Finance,
Battle of Britain Education & Visitors Property & Business Services
Centre and Underground Bunker perty
project, Uxbridge.
New Allocation & Release of S106 ,
RN ) Leader of the Council /
Contributions: Installation of a New ; X
28/01/2016 | ... i Cabinet Member for Finance,
High Performance" Kitchen at Property & Business Services
Whiteheath Junior School, Ruislip perty
New Allocation & Release of S106 .
contributions: Improvements to the Leader of the Council /
28/01/2016 . ' . . Cabinet Member for Finance,
Heating System at Whiteheath Junior : )
- Property & Business Services
School, Ruislip.
. Leader of the Council /
00/02/2016 | APProve of the procedure for the Review | .ot Member for Social
of Flexible Tenancies in the Borough. : :
Services, Health & Housing

Council — 25 February 2016

Page 11




Date of

Decisi Decision Type / Nature of Decision Decision-Maker
ecision

Now Aleralon s Release o105 | Loader ot ro ounc,
15/02/2016 ' Cabinet Member for Finance,

clinical facilities at Otterfield Medical

Centre, Otterfield Road, Yiewsley. Property & Business Services

BACKGROUND PAPERS: Decision Notices

(i) PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS 2016/17

RECOMMENDATION: That the timetable of meetings for 2016/17 as set out in
Appendix A, be approved and the Head of Democratic Services in
consultation with the Chief Whip of the Majority Party be authorised to make
any amendments that may be required throughout the course of the year.

Members should note that during the course of the year meeting times and dates
of some meetings may change or additional meetings may be called in order for
the effective conduct of the council’s business.

(iii) MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES 2016/17

1.

The Council is required to undertake an annual re-adoption of its Allowances
Scheme and, in doing so give due regard to the recommendations made by the
report of the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors in London.
The last report by that body was published in June 2014 and, having given due
regard to its contents, no change is proposed to the nature of the Allowances
Scheme for 2016/17.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That:

a) the current Members’ Allowances Scheme be revoked as of 31 March
2016 and the new Scheme for 2016/17 be approved, as shown in the
Appendix B, for implementation from 1 April 2016.

b) The Head of Democratic Services be authorised to increase the level of
Basic and Special Responsibility allowances in line with any annual pay
award to staff.

INFORMATION

2. Regulation 10 Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations

2003 requires re-adoption of the scheme by 31 March 2016.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.

Provision has been made in the 2016/17 budget for Members’ Allowances,
although it is important to note this is based upon current posts being held by
Members and those who occupy more than one post are only eligible to receive
one Special Responsibility Allowance, normally the higher. It is therefore difficult
to accurately estimate the true cost until after the Annual General Meeting in

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 12




May when Members are confirmed or re-confirmed into posts receiving a
Special Responsibility Allowance.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4. The current scheme, which has been adopted by the Council, needs to be
revoked as of 31 March 2016 and a new scheme, in accordance with the 2003
Regulations, has to be made before 31 March 2016. If it is not, any allowances
paid to Members would not comply with the law and could therefore be
challenged.

5. Before making or amending its allowances scheme, the Council is required, by
vitue of Regulation 19, to have regard to the recommendations of an
Independent Remuneration Panel. The latest recommendations made by the
Panel in 2014 have been taken into account when making these
recommendations.

BACKGROUND PAPERS: Report of the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors in
London

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 13



APPENDIX A
Programme of Meetings 2016/2017 (NB. Times may occasionally vary from those shown in first column.)

MEETING (and start time) May  June July Aug’ Sept’ Oct Mar’ | April
Central & South Planning Committee (7pm) 18* 9,28 20 9,31 20 13 1,24 13 18 8 2,21 12 2,25
North Planning Committee (7pm) 11*,31 21 14 3,24 13 4,26 16 6 11 1,22 16 6,25 16
Major Applications Committee (6pm) 11*,31 21 14 3,24 13 4,26 16 6 11 1,22 16 6,25 16
Whips Meeting (5pm) 5 6 1 17 21

Pensions Committee (7pm) 15 21 7 22

Pensions Board (5pm) 29 5 10 4

Audit Committee (5pm) 30 22 15 16

Health & Wellbeing Board (2.30pm) 5 29 8 14

Health & Wellbeing Board Working Group (dates tbc)

Domestic Violence Action Forum (2pm) 20 19 18 19
Domestic Violence Steering Executive (10am) 27 12 19

Petition Hearings with the Cabinet Member for .

Plaging, Transportation & Recycling (7pm) e e e s e £ i e e e Iz i
Petijon Hearings with the Cabinet Member for

Finghce, Property & Business Services (7pm) 2 v 2 U 2 e

Petition Hearings with other Cabinet Members

(daf%s & times thc)

Licensing Committee (10am) 13 19 10 13
Licensing Sub-Committee (2pm) 420 | 824 | 6,20 | 519 | 519 | 719 | 7,21 216 | 420 | 716 | 2,20 | 419 | 319
E:?)(i::gt\;e Scrutiny Committee (at the rising of 19* 23 21 22 20 17 15 17 9 16 20 18
Social Services, Housing & Public Health Policy

Overview Committee (POC) (7pm) 2 2 e - 2 e 2 = e
Residents’ & Environmental Services POC (5.30pm) 16 27 21 18 22 10 22 22 26
Children, Young People and Learning POC (7pm) 14 13 28 19 23 11 14 14 12
Corporate Services and Partnerships POC (7.30pm) 16 19 13 11 8 5 7 9 25
External Services Scrutiny Committee (6pm) 15 12 15 6 15 12 15 15 27
Hillingdon SACRE (7.30pm 7 2 7

Council — 25 February 2016



APPENDIX B

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2016/17

1. Introduction

In accordance with Local Authorities (Members Allowances) England Regulations 2003 No.
1021 (as amended) the London Borough of Hillingdon makes the following scheme: -

2, Basic Allowance

For 2016/17 an allowance of £10,819.25 will be payable to all Councillors. This figure will be
increased each subsequent year in line with the annual Local Government Pay Settlement
and it will be paid in equal monthly instalments. The basic allowance includes intra borough
travel and subsistence costs.

3. Special Responsibility Allowances

Special responsibility allowances of the following amounts shall be paid in equal monthly
instalments to Councillors holding the following responsibilities:

(£)
1. | Mayor 21,756.36
2. | Deputy Mayor 8,484.84
3. | Leader of the Council 53,828.88
4. | Deputy Leader of the Council 45,344.04
5. | Chief Whip of Largest Party 21,756.36
6. | Cabinet Member 37,919.88
7. | Chairman of Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committee 21,756.36
8. | Chairman of Planning Committee 21,756.36
9. | Chairman of Licensing Committee 9,198.00
10. | Vice Chairman of Licensing Committee 6,132.00
11. | Chairman of Standards Committee 3,066.00
12. | Standards Committee Independent Person 1,533.00
13. | Chairman of Audit Committee* 2,916.86
14. | Champion 5,594.76
15. | Council representative on Adoption and Permanency Panel 12,264.00
16. | Cabinet Assistant 8,484.84
17. | Leader of 2™ Party 21,756.36
18. | Deputy Leader of 2" Party 5,594.76
19. | Chief Whip of 2" Party 5,594.76
20. | 2" Party Lead on Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committee 5,594.76
21. | Party Lead on Planning Committee 5,594.76

* Where a non-Councillor is Chairman or Vice Chairman a co-optees’ allowance is payable as set
out in the Scheme under section 9.

Special Responsibility Allowances will be increased each subsequent year in line with the
annual Local Government Pay Settlement.

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 15



4. Limit on Payment of Special Responsibility Allowances

Individual Councillors may not claim a special responsibility allowance for more than one
position for which they qualify.

5. Renunciation

Councillors may elect to forego any of their entitlement to an allowance under the scheme
by giving written notice to the Corporate Director of Finance.

6. Part-Year Entitlements

(a) This paragraph regulates Councillors’ entitlement to allowances where the scheme is
amended during the course of the year or where an individual ceases to be a
Councillor or accepts or relinquishes a position of special responsibility.

(b) If an amendment to this scheme is made during the year to which it refers and
changes the amount which a Councillor may claim in basic allowances the annual
entitlement shall be calculated using the following method:-

Annual Davs at Annual Davs at

entittementto  _ y payment at y Annual payment at
. = unamended rate X + amended rate X

basic unamended amended rate

divided by 365 divided by 365

allowance rate

(c) Where the term of office of a Councillor begins or ends part way through the year the
annual entitlement to basic allowance shall be calculated using the following method:

Annual entitlement to basic

= Days as a Councillor divided by 365 X Annual rate of allowance
allowance

(d) Where this scheme is amended during the year to which it refers the annual
entitlement to basic allowance of Councillors beginning or ending their term of office
part way through the year shall be calculated using the following method:

Annual Days asa Annual Days as a
. Councillor during . .
entitlement to payment at Councillor during Annual payment
. unamended +
basic . unamended amended scheme at amended rate
scheme divided L
allowance by 365 rate divided by 365

(e) Where Councillors hold positions of special responsibility during part of the year
their annual entitlement to special responsibility allowance shall be calculated using
the following method:

Days holding .

Annual o . Days holdin

entitlement for position .Of S pecial Annual posyition of s%ecial Annual
special _ responsibility X payment at + responsibility during X payment at
responsibility during unamended unamended amended scheme amended
allowance Soneme divided by rate divided by 365 rate

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 16



7. Out of Borough Travelling and Subsistence Allowances

Councillors shall be entitled to claim for out of borough travelling allowances incurred in
undertaking approved duties as agreed in advance by the Council.

The out of borough car mileage allowance for Councillors shall be paid at the same rate
as those paid to officers for the Standard Mileage User Allowance.

The amounts paid for out of borough subsistence shall be in accordance with the
maximum levels laid down from time to time by the Department for Communities and
Local Government but claims may only be made for approved duties.

8. Dependent/ Carers Allowance

A dependent / carers allowance shall be payable at the National Minimum Wage for
Adults hourly rate based on the following criteria:

e payments should be subject to a maximum weekly payment, equivalent to seven-and-
a-half hours of care per week;

e the maximum rate should be set locally to reflect local costs, in accordance with social
service departments levels;

e payment should be claimable in respect of children aged 15 or under or in respect of
other dependants where there is medical or social work evidence that care is required,

e only one weekly payment should be claimable in respect of the household of each
Member, except in special circumstances to be judged by the Council’'s Standards
Committee;

e the allowance should be paid as a reimbursement of incurred expenditure against
receipts;

e the allowance should not be payable to a member of the claimant’s own household
and;

e any dispute as to entittement and any allegation of abuse should be referred to the
Council’s Standards Committee for adjudication.

9. Co-optees’ Allowances

Where a co-optee and non-Councillor is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, an annual
entitlement allowance of £2,916.86 may be paid. This will be paid on a pro-rata basis if
the appointment of the co-optee begins or ends otherwise than at the beginning or end of
a year. Where a co-optee is an Independent Person on the Standards Committee an
annual entitlement allowance of £1,533 may be paid. Where a co-optee is one of the
three statutory education co-optees on the Executive Scrutiny Committee, an annual
entitlement allowance of £408.80 may be paid. This will be paid on a pro-rata basis if the
appointment of the co-optee begins or ends otherwise than at the beginning or end of a
year. These allowances will cover expenses, such as travel and subsistence, related to
the duties of the postholder.

10. Claims and Payments

(a) All claims for out of borough travelling and subsistence and carers allowances must
be submitted within two months of the date of the approved duty to which they
relate, made on the standard form as used by officers and returned to the Head of
Democratic Services.

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 17



(b) Payments shall be made in respect of basic and special responsibility allowances
subject to sub-paragraph (c) below in Instalments of one twelfth of the amount
specified in this scheme on or before the 15" of the month direct to each Member's
bank or building society account.

(c) Where the payment of allowances in one-twelfth instalments would result in a
Councillor receiving more than he or she is entitled to because of a part year effect
(as defined in paragraph 9 above) the payment shall be restricted to the annual
entitlement.

11. Withholding Members’ Allowances

Where there has been an adjudication, which suspends or partially suspends a Councillor
from office following a breach of the Code of Conduct, the Council may withhold all
allowances paid to that Councillor with immediate effect.

12. Records of Allowances and Publicity

In accordance with the 2003 regulations a detailed record will be kept of the name of the
recipient and the amount and nature of each payment made. This will be available for
public inspection at all reasonable times or copies supplied following the payment of a
reasonable fee.

As soon as is reasonably practicable after the end of the municipal year to which the
scheme relates the total sum paid to each recipient in respect of basic allowances,
special responsibility allowance, dependant carers allowance and out of borough
travelling and subsistence allowance will be published on the Council’'s website and local
newspaper.

13. Independent Remuneration Panel
Hillingdon Council has had regard to the recommendations made by the Independent

Panel for the Remuneration of Councillors in London in developing its Members’
Allowances Scheme.

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 18



Agenda ltem 6

LONDON PENSIONS COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE
(CIV)

Reporting Officer: Corporate Director of Finance
SUMMARY

This report explains the background to pooling of investments of the Local Government
pension Scheme and seeks approval from Council for the Hillingdon Fund to join the
London Pensions Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV). The London CIV provides the
opportunity to voluntarily pool Pension Fund Investments in advance of government
compulsion and, based on analysis undertaken, would deliver financial benefits to the
Fund, whilst allowing decisions on asset allocation to remain with Pensions Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Council:

1. Join the London Councils’ Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee, established
under Regulation 11 of the Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of
Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 (pursuant to the existing London
Councils Governing Agreement dated 13 December 2001 (as amended)) to act
as a representative body for those local authorities that resolve to participate in
these arrangements (or in the alternative, should all 33 London authorities
resolve to participate, that London Councils’ Leaders’ Committee exercise
these functions and the Governing Agreement be varied accordingly);

2. Delegate to the Joint Committee those functions necessary for the proper
functioning of the Company, including the effective oversight of the ACS
Operator;

3. Appoint a Councillor to the Joint Committee who will also have power to act for
the Council in exercising its rights as a shareholder at any General Meetings of
the Company;

4. Subscribe to one, £1.00 ordinary A share in the capital of the Company, having
the rights set out in the Articles of Association and Shareholders Agreement;
(both documents are available in the Group offices and on the Council website
at http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.ukl/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=117&MId=2272&Ver=4)

5. Contribute to the Company’s Regulatory Capital requirements by way of a
subscription to 150,000 £1 non-voting B shares in the capital of the Company,
having the rights set out in the Articles of Association and Shareholders
Agreement; and

6. Contribute £75,000 to the start-up and early operating costs
BACKGROUND

The question of how Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Funds across the
country could work closer together to deliver savings has been the subject of much
debate over recent years. In his summer budget, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
announced that Central Government will ‘work with LGPS administering authorities to
ensure that they pool investments to significantly reduce costs, while maintaining overall

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 19



investment performance’. A consultation on pooling proposals was published on 25
November 2015 along with details of the criteria and guidance on Investment Reform
within the LGPS, for final implementation during 2016. The criteria administering
authorities are being asked to deliver against the government's pooling expectations are:

Asset pools that achieve benefits of scale;

Strong governance and decision making;

Reduced costs and excellent value for money; and
Improved capacity to invest in infrastructure.

Central Government have made clear that their intention is that all LGPS funds should
pool their assets into six large pools, with a view to reducing costs and increasing
investment in infrastructure. They expect Administering Authorities to work collaboratively
to create investment pools and all administering authorities have to respond to
government with an outline of their proposals by 19 February 2016. In the first instance,
government will work with authorities who they believe have not developed sufficiently
ambitious proposals. Whilst continuing to manage their Funds assets, each authority
must also make plans to transition their assets as soon as practicable and so each new
investment decision must consider pooling implications. The Pension Committee will not
be asked to make any decisions at their March meeting in light of this direction, until an
approach to pooling has been agreed.

There are several pools being developed across the country, mainly on a regional basis,
although a few of the larger Funds have agreed to work closely together. Smaller funds
like those of London Boroughs would have greater influence if they joined pools of similar
sized funds, hence the London CIV would seem the best option for Hillingdon.

London CIV

In December 2013, London Councils Leaders' Committee resolved that London Councils
should establish a designated fund with contributions from those boroughs interested in
further exploration of proposals for the establishment of a London LGPS Collective
Investment Vehicle (CIV). Since that meeting 30 London boroughs and the Corporation of
London have become active participants in the CIV programme, each having contributed
£50k and the CIV has now been established as a UK Authorised Contractual Scheme
(ACS).

The CIV has been designed to enable London Boroughs to have sufficient control over
the CIV, in order to be assured that it will be acting in their best interests. Authorities
seeking to invest in the CIV will take a shareholding interest in the Operator and have
membership of a Pensions CIV Joint Committee. It is made up of two parts, an
Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) Operator, which is a new limited company, wholly
owned by the participating London local authorities, and the ACS fund, which will be
made up of a range of investment types for the participating funds to choose from. The
Financial Conduct Authority regulates both parts. Lord Kerslake has been appointed
Chairman of the Board of Directors. To oversee the CIV, and to provide a platform for
shareholder decisions to be made, a new sectoral joint committee has been established
under the governing agreement of London Councils. Each of the 31 participating
authorities has nominated a Councillor to sit on the committee, and it works jointly on
behalf of all the shareholders, making decisions such as the appointment of directors and
receiving information from the CIV on which it may comment, but only in so far as allowed
by the rules of the FCA. Should Hillingdon decide to join the CIV, then the administering
authority will have a say on the future direction of the CIV.

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 20



The CIV has now entered its ‘launch’ phase with the first of nine launch sub-funds
opened on 2 December 2015. The remaining eight are now being opened with
completion of the launch phase expected by the end of April 2016. These sub-funds are
comprised of a mix of active and passive equity mandates and will deliver estimated
savings of between £2.8 and £3 million per annum for the 20 boroughs that are
anticipated to be early investors.

Dialogue is continuing with investment managers to negotiate the opening of further sub-
funds beyond launch. In the main these discussions are progressing well with IMs being
generally keen to engage, especially in light of the Government’s published criteria and
guidance.

Investment in the ACS Collective Investment Vehicle

The CIV is launching with a range of nine equity based sub-funds, both active and
passive, which will be managed by four Investment Managers (IM). Hillingdon Pension
Fund doesn’t currently invest with any of those four IMs, but nonetheless all the sub-
funds would be open to the Council investing if the Pension Committee were to decide
that any of the funds offered an attractive investment opportunity. The aim is to have all
nine sub-funds opened by the end of April 2016.

Work is now underway by the CIV and the IAC to open up further sub-funds over the
coming months, but it will take a few years of development before the Fund has a full
range of sub-funds covering all the necessary asset classes. The collective nature of
ACS investments means that the CIV will manage funds on behalf of all investors,
transferring some current decision making powers to the CIV. However, if the Council’s
existing managers opt to take part in the ACS, then there may be potential to move the
council’s investments into the ACS to obtain lower fees with minimal cost and
administrative work.

The scheme has appointed Northern Trust as its custodian to hold the investments. This
is also the current custodian for the London Borough of Hillingdon Fund.

Though the council’s investments will be combined with other council’s investments to
achieve volume savings, LBH’s share of investments will need to be clearly identifiable.
The Council will need to be able to see its investments when needed to pay pensions
due. Before placing pension fund investments in the ACS, legal approval for this
investment will be needed. The London Councils, and now the Operator, have been
taking legal advice throughout the development stages.

Financial implications

London Boroughs already engaged with the CIV have each contributed £50k to the fund
to establish a CIV. In addition there is a £25k annual administration charge to support the
running costs of the investment management company. Were the Hillingdon Fund to join
now then the initial revenue cost would be £75k and then an ongoing £25k annual
charge. Finance officers have been tracking the progress of the CIV since its inception
and have been analysing the fee savings being negotiated as a result of the economies
of scale offered by the CIV. It is clear from this analysis that the savings generated
through lower Investment Manager Fees would more than cover the costs of entry and
the annual running costs and thus deliver ongoing cost reductions to the Pension Fund.

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 21



Legal Implications

There is an established structure that the London CIV has put into place in the form of a
Sectoral Joint Committee together with an Investment Advisory Committee.

Full Council is being asked to agree that the Council should join the joint committee and
to appoint an elected Councillor to it. The Borough Solicitor confirms that the statutory
authority for these recommendations can be found in the Local Government Act 1972 and
The Local Authorities [Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions] [England]
Regulations 2012.

Section 102[1] [b] of the 1972 Act provides that two or more local authorities may appoint
a joint committee of those authorities for the purpose of discharging their functions which
in this case are non-executive. Section 102[2] of the Act provides that the number of
members of the joint committee, their term of office and the area [if restricted] within
which the joint committee is to exercise its authority are to be fixed. These provisions are
endorsed in Regulation 11[5] of the 2012 Regulations.

The London CIV has established a company, London LGPS CIV Limited, with an
Authorised Contractual Scheme structure, for the purpose of managing assets. The
company was incorporated on 17 July 2014 and formally adopted by way of a written
resolution passed on 9 October 2015.

The Council will, if it agrees the recommendations in this report, be required to subscribe
to one £1 ordinary share in the capital of the company and on the basis that it does so, it
will need to fully comply with the terms of the company's Articles of Association and a
Shareholders Agreement. The Borough Solicitor has carefully perused these documents,
which are in standard form, and advises that there is nothing to prevent the Council from
being bound by them.

BACKGROUND PAPERS: None

Council — 25 February 2016 Page 22



Company No. 09136445

Articles of Association of London LGPS CIV Limited

Incorporated 17 July 2014
Adopted by written resolution passed on 9 October 2015

Eversheds LLP Tel 0845 497 9797
One Wood Street Fax 0845 497 4919
London Int +44 20 7919 4500
EC2V 7WS DX 154280 Cheapside 8
www.eversheds.com
Page 23

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article Page
1 INTERPRETATION L..iiitiiiiiiii ittt et e e et e e et e e et et et e et et et et et e et eae et aaeaeanes 3
2 LIABILITY OF MEMBERS. ... oottt ettt st e e e e e e e ana e 6
3 DIRECTORS’ GENERAL AUTHORITY L.ttt eieie et e e eie e s eaesaeaesnaaennanens 6
4 SHAREHOLDERS' RESERVE POWER ... .ottt n e v e aenaa e naaaes 6
5 DIRECTORS MAY DELEGATE ..ttt et e e e e e e e aaeas 6
6 COMMITTEES ..ttt ittt ettt e ettt e et et et et et et ettt a e e et e e et aaeeeanes 7
7 DIRECTORS TO TAKE DECISIONS COLLECTIVELY ..vvviiiiiiii i aea e 7
8 UNANIMOUS DECISIONS OF DIRECTORS...cctiitiiiiiiiiii it snesnesansanaananeas 7
9 CALLING A DIRECTORS MEETING ..uiitiitiiniiiieieie e sesesssnsnsnnsnnsnnsnnsnnsnnss 7
10 PARTICIPATION IN DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS ...ciiiiiiiiiii i sesnesnesnnnnnaneas 8
11 QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS' MEETINGS ...citiiiiiiiiiiii i i ittt st st aasaaanaa e 8
12 CHAIRING OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS....ciutiiiiiiii it ittt aaeaaeaaa e 9
13 CASTING VOTE ittt ittt ettt e et et et et e e et e et et et e a e e nteaeaeas 9
14 DIRECTORS INTEREST S .. ittt ettt et et e e st e e et a e et a et a e aaaes 10
15 RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT . uiutitiiiiiiiiiii st stsaesasennnenaanes 11
16 DIRECTORS’ DISCRETION TO MAKE FURTHER RULES........cciiviiviiiiiiceieeeae 11
17 NUMBER OF DIRECTORS ... ittt et et e e e e te e st e e et a e e e e ntaaeaaaaes 11
18 APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS....cciiiiiiiiiiiiivi it aaa e 11
19 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION .. .ttiitiitiiteieie s ee s nesesesesesesnsnnsnnsnnannanes 12
20 DIRECTORS EXPENSES ...ttt et e et et 12
21 DIRECTORS POWERS ..ottt sttt et et e e st e e st a e et a et a e aa e e eaaes 12
22 ALTERNATE DIRECTORS .. tiitiitiiiiiiiiire e tre sttt s st et e e et e e e e aeaneaaaas 12
23 ALTERNATE DIRECTORS' EXPENSES.....cciitiiiiii ittt re e e e naa e 14
24 ALL SHARES TO BE FULLY PAID UP ...ttt na e e 14
25 POWER TO ISSUE DIFFERENT CLASSES OF SHARES .......cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiieienaae 14
26 ISSUES OF SHARES AND PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS.....cciiiiiiiiiiiiciceeicne e 15
27 RIGHTS ATTACHING TO THE SHARES. ..ottt e 15
28 PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES ...ttt ettt a e e e e n e e 16
29 COMPANY NOT BOUND BY LESS THAN ABSOLUTE INTERESTS .....cccvvvviviininnnns 16
30 SHARE CERTIFICATES . ittt ettt e e et e e anaanans 17
31 REPLACEMENT SHARE CERTIFICATES ..uviitiiiiiiii it sie s e snesnennnannannans 17
32 RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER ...ttt ettt st e e saa e e aaa e taaearaaeeaaaes 18
33 TRANSFERS NULL AND VOID ..utitiitiniitiiiintssaestsentssenasenasenssensssnesnenens 18
34 SHAREHOLDER WITHDRAWAL ..ottt et e e e et a e saa e eaaaenaannns 18
35 DEEMED TRANSFERS TO THE COMPANY ...ttt re e e aaa e 18
36 PROCEDURE FOR DECLARING DIVIDENDS.....ciiiiiiiiiii i s snesnnanaannaas 19
37 PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS......ccevitvitiieiieninnnnnnanns 20
38 NO INTEREST ON DISTRIBUTIONS ...ttt i e revevevesesnnsnnsnnsnnannens 20
39 UNCLAIMED DISTRIBUTIONS ... ittt ittt s s s ee et st et e st s e s e e aaaaanaans 20
40 NON-CASH DISTRIBUTIONS ..ottt iiiie e s re et ettt st s e s e e aae e e aaanaans 21
41 WAIVER OF DISTRIBUTIONS ..ottt et st st st st st st s aaean s anaaaanneneas 21
42 AUTHORITY TO CAPITALISE AND APPROPRIATION OF CAPITALISED SUMS......... 22
43 RETURN OF CAPITAL RIGHTS ...t ittt et a e e 23

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS ....vvvveiiurieeeitreeesiteeeeseseeesseseeesssseeessnsesessnens 23
ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING AT GENERAL MEETINGS .....eovvvvvvreeiirireesiveneennn, 23
CHAIRING GENERAL MEETINGS ....vvvieiiurieeiitireesiteeeeseraeeesesenesseseeesssenssssenens 24
ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING BY DIRECTORS AND NON-SHAREHOLDERS........ 24
QUORUM AT GENERAL MEETINGS .....vvveeiirreeeeirreeesiseeeeseseesesesaeessesseessesseeeanns 24
VOTING: GENERAL .....vvveeeitteeeeetteeeeeteeeeseseeeeseseeeeseseeeesesseeesesaseesesseeesenseeeanns 25
ERRORS AND DISPUTES......uvvieiiurieeeitteeeiteeeessesessseesssssesesssesessssesssseesanns 25
CONTENT OF PROXY NOTICES .....uvvieiiurieeierieeeseseeeeseseeeesseeessseeesssnsesasenens 25
DELIVERY OF PROXY NOTICES ... ..eeeiiuueeeiirereeireeesiteeessseeesssnsesssneessnneeesnns 26
AMENDMENTS TO RESOLUTIONS .....uvvvieiiireeeireeeeseteeeesereeesseseeeesesesesseneeeeaans 26
WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS ... uvvieiitrieesiuereesiseeeesssesesssseeesssessssnsesssssseessasseeesnns 27
NUMBER OF VOTES ....uvvvieiittieeeiteeeeeteeeesiteeesssasessseesssssesessnssesssnsseessseessnns 27
COMPANY COMMUNICATION PROVISIONS .......vvvieiieiieesrieeesirieeesereeeeseneeeeaans 27
COMPANY SEALS .....uviieiietiee s ittt e e ite e e s ette e e s ette e e s bt e s st aeeesettaessebeaeesereeessares 28
NO RIGHT TO INSPECT ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECORDS .......cccvvveeeiivvinenn. 28
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE ........cceiiureeeereeeesrreeeseseeeeseseeeesnes 29
REGISTERED OFFICE ... ..cuvvieeitieeeiteeesiseeeeesseessassesssesssssssssssssesssssseseneesnsees 29
LIMITED LIABILITY w.veeeivtieeicteeeeseteeeseteeeesesseessesesessesssessesssessnssseesseesssnsenens 29
Page 25

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

LONDON LGPS CIV LIMITED

Adopted by written resolution passed on 2015
1. INTERPRETATION
1.1 In these Articles the following expressions have the following meanings unless

inconsistent with the context:

“2006 Act”

“A Shares”

“these Articles”

“B Shares”

“bankruptcy”

“Business Day”

”

“chairman of the meeting

“Companies Acts”

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015

the Companies Act 2006 (as amended from
time to time)

the ordinary shares of £1.00 each in the capital
of the Company having the rights set out in
these Articles in respect of Shares of that class

these articles of association as amended from
time to time

the non-voting redeemable shares of £1.00
each in the capital of the Company having the
rights set out in these Articles in respect of
Shares of that class

includes individual insolvency proceedings in a
jurisdiction other than England and Wales or
Northern Ireland which have an effect similar
to that of bankruptcy

any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday or a
bank or public holiday in England)

has the meaning given in Article 46.3

the Companies Acts (as defined in section 2 of
the Companies Act 2006), in so far as they
apply to the Company

Page 26



“director”

“Directors’ Chairman”

“distribution recipient”

“document”

“electronic form”

“eligible directors”

“Encumbrance”

“fully paid”

w FCAI’

“FCA Rules”

“hard copy form”

“holder”

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015

a director of the Company, and includes any
person occupying the position of director, by
whatever name called

the default chairman of meetings of directors
as chosen by the directors pursuant to Article
12

has the meaning given in Article 37.2

includes, unless otherwise specified, any
document sent or supplied in electronic form

has the meaning given in section 1168 of the
Companies Act 2006 but does not, for the
avoidance of doubt, include communication via
a website

has the meaning given in Article 8.3

includes any interest or equity of any person
(including, without prejudice to the generality
of the foregoing, any right to acquire, option,
right of pre-emption or right of conversion) or
any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or
assignment or any other encumbrance, priority
or security interest or arrangement of
whatsoever nature over or in the relevant
property

in relation to a Share, means that the nominal
value and any premium to be paid to the
company in respect of that Share have been
paid to the company

the Financial Conduct Authority and any
successor body

the Handbook of Rules and Guidance of the
FCA, as amended, supplemented and replaced
from time to time

has the meaning given in section 1168 of the
Companies Act 2006

in relation to Shares means the person whose

Page 27



“instrument”

“ordinary resolution”

“paid"

“participate”

n

“proxy notice
“PCS3IC”
“shareholder”

“Shares”

“Shareholders’ Chairman”

“special resolution”

“the Statutes”

“subsidiary”

“United Kingdom”

“Withdrawal Date”

“in writing”

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015

name is entered in the register of members as
the holder of the Shares

means a document in hard copy form

has the meaning given in section 282 of the
Companies Act 2006

paid or credited as paid

in relation to a directors’ meeting, has the
meaning given in Article 10.1

has the meaning given in Article 51.1
the Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee
a person who is the holder of a Share

A Shares and B Shares and any other shares in
the capital of the company from time to time

the default chairman for general meetings, as
appointed by the Shareholders

has the meaning given in section 283 of the
Companies Act 2006

the Companies Acts as defined in section 2 of
the Companies Act 2006 and every other
statute, order, regulation, instrument or other
subordinate legislation for the time being in
force relating to companies and affecting the
Company

has the meaning given in section 1159 of the
Companies Act 2006

Great Britain and Northern Ireland

in respect of a shareholder, has the meaning
given in Article 34.1

hard copy form or, to the extent agreed (or
deemed to be agreed by virtue of a provision of
the Statutes) electronic form (but not to
include by means of a website)

Page 28



1.2

1.3

4.1

4.2

5.1

Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these
Articles bear the same meaning as in the Companies Acts and every other
statute, order, regulation or other subordinate legislation in force from time to
time relating to companies and affecting the Company but excluding any
statutory modification of the same not in force when these Articles become
binding on the Company.

References to any statute or statutory provision include, unless the context
otherwise requires, a reference to that statute or statutory provision as modified,
replaced, re-enacted or consolidated and in force from time to time and any
subordinate legislation made under the relevant statute or statutory provision.

LIABILITY OF MEMBERS

The liability of the members is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid on the
Shares held by them.

DIRECTORS’' POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
DIRECTORS’ GENERAL AUTHORITY

Subject to these Articles, the directors are responsible for the management of
the Company’s business, for which purpose they may exercise all the powers of
the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RESERVE POWER

The shareholders may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or
refrain from taking, specified action.

No such special resolution invalidates anything which the directors have done
before the passing of the resolution.

DIRECTORS MAY DELEGATE

Subject to these Articles, the directors may delegate any of the powers which
are conferred on them under these Articles:

5.1.1 to such person or committee;
5.1.2 by such means (including by power of attorney);
5.1.3 to such an extent;
5.1.4 in relation to such matters or territories; and
5.1.5 on such terms and conditions,

Page 29

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

as they think fit.

If the directors so specify, any such delegation may authorise further delegation
of the directors' powers by any person to whom they are delegated.

The directors may revoke any delegation in whole or part, or alter its terms and
conditions.

COMMITTEES

Committees to which the directors delegate any of their powers must follow
procedures which are based as far as they are applicable on those provisions of
these Articles which govern the taking of decisions by directors.

The directors may make rules of procedure for all or any committees, which
prevail over rules derived from these Articles if they are not consistent with
them.

DIRECTORS TO TAKE DECISIONS COLLECTIVELY

The general rule about decision-making by directors is that any decision of the
directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a decision taken in
accordance with Article 8.

UNANIMOUS DECISIONS OF DIRECTORS

A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this Article 8 when all
eligible directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a common
view on a matter.

Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, where each eligible
director has signed one or more copies of it, or to which each eligible director
has otherwise indicated agreement in writing.

References in this Article 8 to eligible directors are to directors who would have
been entitled to vote on the matter had it been proposed as a resolution at a
directors’ meeting.

A decision may not be taken in accordance with this Article 8 if the eligible
directors would not have formed a quorum at such a meeting.

CALLING A DIRECTORS’ MEETING

Any director may call a directors’ meeting by giving not less than five Business
Days’ notice of the meeting (except in the case of an emergency) to the
directors or by authorising the company secretary to give such notice.

Notice of any directors' meeting must indicate:

Page 30

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

9.2.1 its proposed date and time;
9.2.2 where it is to take place; and

9.2.3 if it is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be
in the same place, how it is proposed that they should simultaneously
communicate with each other during the meeting.

Notice of a directors’ meeting need not be given to directors who waive their
entitlement to notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the
Company not more than 7 days after the date on which the meeting is held.
Where such notice is given after the meeting has been held, that does not affect
the validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.

PARTICIPATION IN DIRECTORS’' MEETINGS

Subject to these Articles, directors participate in a directors’ meeting, or part of
a directors’ meeting, when:-

10.1.1 the meeting has been called and takes place in accordance with these
Articles; and

10.1.2 they can each simultaneously communicate with and to the others
participating in the meeting any information or opinions they have on
any particular item of the business of the meeting.

In determining whether directors are participating in a directors’ meeting, it is
irrelevant where any director is or, subject to Article 10.1.2, how they
communicate with each other.

If all the directors participating in a meeting are not in the same place, they may
decide that the meeting is to be treated as taking place wherever any of them is.

QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

At a directors’ meeting, unless a quorum is participating, no proposal is to be
voted on, except a proposal to call another meeting.

Subject to this Article 11, the quorum for directors’ meetings shall throughout
each meeting be three directors.

If the total number of directors for the time being is less than the quorum
required, the directors must not take any decision other than a decision:

11.3.1 to appoint further directors, or

11.3.2 to call a general meeting so as to enable the shareholders to appoint
further directors.

Page 31

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



11.4

11.5

12.

12.1

12.2

13.

13.1

13.2

If there is no quorum participating in any meeting of the directors within two
hours after the time fixed for the meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned to
such time as the director or directors participating in the meeting shall
determine, or, in the absence of any directors participating, to such time as the
chairman of the preceding directors’ meeting shall determine. If there is no
quorum participating within one hour after the time fixed for the adjourned
meeting, the meeting shall be further adjourned as aforesaid. If there is no
quorum participating within one hour after the time fixed for the further
adjourned meeting any two directors participating shall constitute a quorum.

If, as a consequence of section 175(6) of the 2006 Act, a director cannot vote or
be counted in the quorum at a directors’ meeting then the following shall apply:

11.5.1 if the eligible directors participating in the meeting do not constitute a
quorum then the quorum for the purposes of the meeting shall be
reduced by one for each director who cannot vote or be counted in the
quorum; and

11.5.2 if despite Article 11.5.1 the eligible directors participating in the
meeting still do not constitute a quorum or there are no eligible
directors then the meeting must be adjourned to enable the
shareholders to authorise any situation in which a director has a direct
or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the
interests of the Company.

CHAIRING OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

The directors shall appoint a Directors’ Chairman to chair their meetings. The
directors may terminate the Directors’ Chairman’s appointment at any time.

If the Directors’ Chairman is not participating in a directors’ meeting within 30
minutes of the time at which it was to start, the participating directors must
appoint one of themselves to chair it.

CASTING VOTE

If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal are equal at a meeting of the
directors, the Directors’ Chairman or other director chairing the meeting has a
casting vote.

But this does not apply if, in accordance with Article 11 or any restrictions
imposed by the FCA, the Directors’ Chairman or other director is not to be
counted as participating in the decision-making process for quorum or voting
purposes.

Page 32

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



14. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

14.1 Subject to these Articles, the 2006 Act and any requirements of the FCA, and
provided that he has disclosed to the other directors the nature and extent of
any interest of his, a director:

14.1.1 may hold any other office or employment with the Company (other
than the office of auditor); and

14.1.2 may, or any firm or company of which he is a member or director may,
act in a professional capacity for the Company or any body corporate
in which the Company is in any way interested (other than as auditor).

14.2 Except for a vote under section 175(4) of the 2006 Act authorising any conflict of
interest which a director or any other interested director may have, or where the
terms of authorisation of such conflict provide that a director may not vote in
situations prescribed by the directors when granting such authorisation, and
subject in each case to any restrictions imposed by the FCA with respect thereto,
a director will be entitled to participate in the decision making process for voting
and quorum purposes on any of the matters referred to in 14.1.1 to 14.1.2 and
in any of the circumstances set out in Article 14.3. For the avoidance of doubt,
pursuant to section 175(4) of the 2006 Act, the directors may authorise any
conflict of interest which an interested director may have.

14.3 The circumstances referred to in Article 14.2 are:

14.3.1 the company by ordinary resolution disapplies any provision of these
Articles which would otherwise prevent a director from being counted
as participating in the decision-making process; or

14.3.2 the director's interest cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give
rise to a conflict of interest.

14.4 For the purposes of these Articles references to decision making processes
include any directors’ meeting or part of a directors’ meeting.

14.5 For the purposes of Article 14.1:

14.5.1 a general notice given in accordance with the 2006 Act is to be treated
as a sufficient declaration of interest;

14.5.2 a director is not required to declare an interest either where he is not
aware of such interest or is not aware of the transaction or
arrangement in question; and

14.5.3 an interest of a director who appoints an alternate director shall be
treated as an interest of the alternate director.

Page 33
lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



14.6

14.7

15.

16.

17.

17.1

18.

18.1

18.2

Subject to Article 14.7, if a question arises at a meeting of directors or of a
committee of directors as to the right of a director to participate in the meeting
(or part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes, the question may,
before the conclusion of the meeting, be referred to the Directors’ Chairman or
other director chairing the meeting whose ruling in relation to any director other
than the Directors’ Chairman or other director chairing the meeting is to be final
and conclusive.

If any question as to the right to participate in the meeting (or part of the
meeting) should arise in respect of the Directors’ Chairman or other director
chairing the meeting, the question is to be decided by a decision of the directors
at that meeting, for which purpose the Directors’ Chairman or other director
chairing the meeting is not to be counted as participating in the meeting (or that
part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes.

RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT

The directors must ensure that the Company keeps a record, in writing, for at
least 10 years from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous or
majority decision taken by the directors.

DIRECTORS’ DISCRETION TO MAKE FURTHER RULES

Subject to these Articles, the directors may make any rule which they think fit
about how they take decisions, and about how such rules are to be recorded or
communicated to directors.

NUMBER OF DIRECTORS
The number of directors shall not be less than five (5).
APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Any person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law to do so
and has obtained the necessary approval from the FCA to act as such, may be
appointed a director by a decision of the directors.

A person ceases to be a director as soon as:

18.2.1 that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the
Companies Act 2006 or is prohibited from being a director by law;

18.2.2 a bankruptcy order is made against that person;

18.2.3 a composition is made with that person's creditors generally in
satisfaction of that person's debts;

Page 34

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

20.

21,

22.

221

18.2.4 a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a
written opinion to the company stating that that person has become
physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may remain
so for more than three months; or

18.2.5 notification is received by the Company from the director that the
director is resigning from office, and such resignation has taken effect
in accordance with its terms.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Subject to these Articles, a director's remuneration may:
19.1.1 take any form, and

19.1.2 include any arrangements in connection with the payment of a
pension, allowance or gratuity, or any death, sickness or disability
benefits, to or in respect of that director.

Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors' remuneration accrues from day
to day.

Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors are not accountable to the
Company for any remuneration which they receive as directors or other officers
or employees of the Company's subsidiaries or of any other body corporate in
which the Company is interested.

DIRECTORS’ EXPENSES

The Company may pay any reasonable expenses which the directors properly
incur in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge of their
responsibilities in relation to the Company in accordance with any expenses
policy of the Company as is approved by the directors from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ POWERS

The directors may procure that the Company borrow and raise money by way of
borrowings on behalf of the Company without allowing any prospective lender a
right to participate in the share capital of the Company as a condition of any
such borrowing or to take any Encumbrance over any of the Shares.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS
Appointment and removal of alternates

22.1.1  Any director (the “appointor”) may appoint as an alternate any other
director of the Company to:

Page 35

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



22.1.2

22.1.3

22.1.1.1 exercise that director’s powers; and
22.1.1.2 carry out that director’s responsibilities,

in relation to participation in directors’ meetings and the taking of
decisions by the directors in the absence of the alternate’s appointor.

Any appointment or removal of an alternate must be effected by notice
in writing to the Company signed by the appointor, or in any other
manner approved by the directors.

The notice must:
22.1.3.1 identify the proposed alternate; and

22.1.3.2 in the case of a notice of appointment, contain a
statement signed by the proposed alternate that the
proposed alternate is willing to act as the alternate of the
director giving the notice.

22.2 Rights and responsibilities of alternate directors

22.2.1

22.2.2

22.2.3

22.2.4

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015

An alternate director has the same rights, in relation to participation in
directors’ meetings and the taking of decisions by the directors and in
relation to directors’ written resolutions, as the alternate’s appointor.

An alternate director may act as an alternate director for more than
one appointor.

Except as these Articles specify otherwise, alternate directors:-
22.2.3.1 are liable for their own acts and omissions;

22.2.3.2 are subject to the same restrictions as their appointors;
and

22.2.3.3 are not deemed to be agents of or for their appointors.

and, each alternate director shall be entitled to receive notice of all
meetings of directors and of all meetings of committees of directors of
which his appointor is a member.

A director who is also an alternate director is entitled, in the absence of
his appointor, to a separate vote on behalf of his appointor, in addition
to his own vote on any decision of the directors (provided that his
appointor is an eligible director in relation to that decision), but shall
not count as more than one director for the purposes of determining
whether a quorum is present.

Page 36



22.3

23.

24.

25.

25.1

25.2

22.2.5 An alternate director is not entitled to receive any remuneration from
the Company for serving as an alternate director except such part of
the alternate’s appointor’'s remuneration as the appointor may direct
by notice in writing made to the Company.

Termination of alternate directorship
22.3.1  An alternate director’s appointment as alternate terminates:

22.3.1.1 when the alternate’s appointor revokes the appointment
by notice to the Company in writing specifying when it is
to terminate;

22.3.1.2 on the occurrence in relation to the alternate of any event
which, if it occurred in relation to the alternate’s
appointor, would result in the termination of the
appointor’s appointment as a director;

22.3.1.3 on the death of the alternate’s appointor; or

22.3.1.4 when the alternate’s appointor’s appointment as a director
terminates.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS' EXPENSES

Article 20 shall apply in relation to alternate directors.
SHARES AND DISTRIBUTIONS

ALL SHARES TO BE FULLY PAID UP

No Share is to be issued for less than the aggregate of its nominal value and any
premium to be paid to the Company in consideration for its issue.

POWER TO ISSUE DIFFERENT CLASSES OF SHARES

Subject to these Articles, but without prejudice to the rights attached to any
existing Share, the Company may issue Shares with such rights or restrictions as
may be determined by ordinary resolution.

Subject to these Articles, but without prejudice to the rights attached to any
existing Share, the Company may issue Shares which are to be redeemed, or are
liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or the holder, and the
directors may determine the terms, conditions and manner of redemption of any
such Shares.

Page 37

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



26.

26.1

26.2

26.3

27.

27.1

27.2

27.3

27.4

27.5

ISSUES OF SHARES AND PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

For the purposes of section 551 of the 2006 Act, the directors are generally and
unconditionally authorised to allot:

26.1.1 A Shares in the Company or to grant rights to subscribe for, or to
convert any security into, A Shares up to a maximum nominal value of
£33; and

26.1.2 B Shares in the Company or to grant rights to subscribe for, or to
convert any security into, B Shares up to a maximum nominal value of
£7,200,000,

provided that this authority shall expire five (5) years after the adoption of these
Articles, unless previously renewed, revoked or varied except that the Company
may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which will or may require
the allotment of Shares or the grant of rights to subscribe for, or convert any
security into, shares in the Company, after such expiry.

In accordance with section 551(1) of the 2006 Act, any issue or allotment of
shares in the Company or any grant of rights to subscribe for, or to convert any
security into, A Shares or B Shares, respectively, above the maximum
respective nominal value stipulated under Article 26.1 must be approved by
ordinary resolution of the Company.

In accordance with section 567(1) and (2) of the 2006 Act, sections 561(1) and
562 (1) to (5) (inclusive) of that Act shall not apply to the Company.

RIGHTS ATTACHING TO THE SHARES

Save as otherwise provided in these Articles, the A Shares and the B Shares
shall be treated as if they constituted one class of Share.

The B Shares shall not entitle any holder thereof to the payment of any dividend
or other distribution of income or, subject to Article 43.1, capital, or otherwise.

The B Shares shall not entitle any holder thereof to receive notice of, or to
attend or vote at, general meetings of the Company.

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the B Shares held by any shareholder
shall be redeemed by the Company on the Withdrawal Date with respect to that
shareholder at par value.

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company may with the prior
written consent of the holders of 75% of the A Shares redeem all or some of the
B Shares in advance of the due date for redemption as specified in Article 27.4
at par value.

Page 38

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



27.6

27.7

27.8

28.

28.1

28.2

29.

29.1

On the date fixed for any redemption the Company shall, subject to the Statutes,
pay to each shareholder whose B Shares are to be so redeemed an amount
equal to the par value of the B Shares to be redeemed and upon receipt of that
amount each such shareholder shall surrender to the Company the certificate(s)
for the B Shares to be redeemed. If any certificate surrendered is for more B
Shares than are to be redeemed at that time the Company shall issue to the
holder free of charge a new certificate for the balance of the Shares not
redeemed.

Where the Company is precluded by the Statutes or otherwise by law from
redeeming any B Shares on the due date for redemption, then:

27.7.1 the Company shall redeem, on that date, as many of the B Shares
which can then, consistently with the Statutes, be redeemed by the
Company; and

27.7.2 as soon as the Company is no longer precluded from doing so, the
Company shall in respect of the B Shares not redeemed, redeem the
maximum number of B Shares which can, consistently with the
Statutes, properly be paid by the Company at that time.

The special rights conferred by the B Shares shall be deemed not to be modified
or abrogated by the creation or issue of further Shares ranking pari passu or in
priority to or subordinate to the B Shares.

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

Following any purchase by the Company of its own Shares in accordance with
the provisions of the 2006 Act, and/or in accordance with the requirements of
these Articles, all the purchased Shares shall be immediately cancelled.

Subject to the 2006 Act, but without prejudice to any other provision of these
Articles, the Company may purchase or redeem its own Shares in accordance
with Chapter 4 of Part 18 of the Act, including (without limitation) out of capital
up to any amount in a financial year not exceeding the lower of:

28.2.1 £15,000; and

28.2.2 the nominal value of 5% of the Company's fully paid share capital at
the beginning of each financial year of the Company.

COMPANY NOT BOUND BY LESS THAN ABSOLUTE INTERESTS

Except as required by law, no person is to be recognised by the Company as
holding any Share upon any trust, and except as otherwise required by law or
these Articles, the Company is not in any way to be bound by or recognise any

Page 39

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



30.

30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

30.5

31.

31.1

31.2

interest in a Share other than the holder's absolute ownership of it and all the
rights attaching to it.

SHARE CERTIFICATES

The company must issue each shareholder, free of charge, with one or more
certificates in respect of the Shares which that shareholder holds.

Every certificate must specify:

30.2.1 in respect of how many Shares, of what class, it is issued;
30.2.2 the nominal value of those Shares;

30.2.3 that the Shares are fully paid; and

30.2.4 any distinguishing numbers assigned to them.

No certificate may be issued in respect of Shares of more than one class.

If more than one person holds a Share, only one certificate may be issued in
respect of it.

Certificates must:

30.5.1 have affixed to them the Company's common seal, or

30.5.2 be otherwise executed in accordance with the Companies Acts.
REPLACEMENT SHARE CERTIFICATES

If a certificate issued in respect of a shareholder's Shares is:

31.1.1 damaged or defaced, or

31.1.2 said to be lost, stolen or destroyed,

that shareholder is entitled to be issued with a replacement certificate in respect
of the same Shares.

A shareholder exercising the right to be issued with such a replacement
certificate:

31.2.1 may at the same time exercise the right to be issued with a single
certificate or separate certificates;

31.2.2 must return the certificate which is to be replaced to the Company if it
is damaged or defaced; and

Page 40

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



32.

32.1

33.

33.1

34.

34.1

34.2

35.

35.1

35.2

35.3

31.2.3 must comply with such conditions as to evidence, indemnity and the
payment of a reasonable fee as the directors decide.

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER

In these Articles, references to a transfer of a Share include the transfer or
assignment of a beneficial or other interest in that Share or the creation of a
trust or encumbrance over that Share and reference to a Share includes a
beneficial or other interest in a Share.

TRANSFERS NULL AND VOID

Except for a purchase by the Company of its own Shares, or a redemption by the
Company of the B Shares, in each case in accordance with the provisions of the
2006 Act and these Articles, any transfer or purported transfer of a Share shall
be null and void and of no effect.

SHAREHOLDER WITHDRAWAL

Where any shareholder proposes to withdraw as a shareholder of the Company,
such withdrawing shareholder shall provide at least 12 months’ notice of such
withdrawal to the Company, such notice to expire on 31 March of any given year
(the “Withdrawal Date”).

On the Withdrawal Date, the Company shall purchase any A Shares held by the
relevant withdrawing shareholder(s) at par value in accordance with Part 18 of
the 2006 Act.

DEEMED TRANSFERS TO THE COMPANY

If a shareholder, or other person entitled to transfer a Share (otherwise than in
accordance with these Articles), at any time attempts to transfer, deal with or
dispose of a Share or any legal or beneficial interest in such Share otherwise
than in accordance with Article 27 (Rights attaching to Shares) (in relation to
the redemption of B Shares) or Article 34 (Shareholder Withdrawal), or if any of
the events specified in Article 35.3 or Article 35.4 occurs in respect of a
shareholder, the provisions of Article 35.2 shall apply.

Where Article 35.1 applies to any shareholder, such shareholder shall be
deemed to have given a transfer notice on the occurrence of such attempt or
event in favour of the Company and to have specified in such transfer notice as
the price per Share, the par value of each Share and the Company shall
implement such transfer by way of purchase or redemption of such Shares in
accordance with the 2006 Act.

Article 35.2 shall apply on the occurrence of any of the following events:

Page 41

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



35.4

35.5

35.6

36.

36.1

36.2

36.3

35.3.1 any direction (by way of renunciation, nomination or otherwise) by a
shareholder entitled to an allotment or transfer of Shares to the effect
that such Shares or any of them be allotted or issued or transferred to
some person other than himself; or

35.3.2 any sale, dealing with or other disposition of any beneficial interest in a
Share (whether or not for consideration or otherwise) by whomsoever
made and whether or not effected by an instrument in writing except
where the disposition is by service of a transfer notice in accordance
with these Articles.

For the purpose of ensuring that no circumstances have arisen whereby a
transfer notice is deemed to be given or is required to be served, the directors
may from time to time require any shareholder or past shareholder to furnish to
them such information and evidence as the directors may reasonably think fit
regarding any matter which they consider relevant to establish whether any
circumstances have arisen whereby a transfer notice is required to be served.
Failing such information being furnished to the reasonable satisfaction of the
directors within a reasonable time after it has been requested, or if in the
reasonable opinion of the directors any such information or evidence is false in
any material respect, the directors may declare by notice in writing to the
relevant shareholder that a transfer notice shall be deemed to have been given
in respect of any relevant Shares and Article 35.2 shall apply in respect of any
Shares held by such shareholder.

For the purpose of Articles 35.1 to 35.4 inclusive, the word “shareholder”
includes any former shareholder.

REGISTRATION OF TRANSFERS

The Directors shall refuse to register any transfer of a Share.
DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS

PROCEDURE FOR DECLARING DIVIDENDS

The Company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends, and the directors
may decide to pay interim dividends.

A dividend must not be declared unless the directors have made a
recommendation as to its amount. Such a dividend must not exceed the amount
recommended by the directors.

No dividend may be declared or paid unless it is in accordance with shareholders'
respective rights.

Page 42

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



36.4

36.5

37.

37.1

37.2

38.

38.1

39.

Unless the shareholders' resolution to declare or directors' decision to pay a
dividend, or the terms on which Shares are issued, specify otherwise, it must be
paid by reference to each shareholders' holding of Shares on the date of the
resolution or decision to declare or pay it.

The directors may pay at intervals any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it
appears to them that the profits available for distribution justify the payment.

PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS

Where a dividend or other sum which is a distribution is payable in respect of a
Share, it must be paid by one or more of the following means:

37.1.1 transfer to a bank or building society account specified by the
distribution recipient either in writing or as the directors may otherwise
decide;

37.1.2 sending a cheque made payable to the distribution recipient by post to
the distribution recipient at the distribution recipient's registered
address;

37.1.3 sending a cheque made payable to such person by post to such person
at such address as the distribution recipient has specified either in
writing or as the directors may otherwise decide; or

37.1.4 any other means of payment as the directors agree with the
distribution recipient either in writing or by such other means as the
directors decide.

In these Articles, "the distribution recipient" means, in respect of a Share in
respect of which a dividend or other sum is payable:

37.2.1 the holder of the Share; or

37.2.2 if the Share has two or more joint holders, whichever of them is named
first in the register of members.

NO INTEREST ON DISTRIBUTIONS

The Company may not pay interest on any dividend or other sum payable in
respect of a Share unless otherwise provided by:

38.1.1 the terms on which the Share was issued, or

38.1.2 the provisions of another agreement between the holder of that Share
and the Company.

UNCLAIMED DISTRIBUTIONS

Page 43

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



39.1

39.2

39.3

40.

40.1

40.2

41.

41.1

All dividends or other sums which are:
39.1.1 payable in respect of Shares, and
39.1.2 unclaimed after having been declared or become payable,

may be invested or otherwise made use of by the directors for the benefit of the
Company until claimed.

The payment of any such dividend or other sum into a separate account does not
make the Company a trustee in respect of it.

If:

39.3.1 twelve years have passed from the date on which a dividend or other
sum became due for payment, and

39.3.2 the distribution recipient has not claimed it,

the distribution recipient is no longer entitled to that dividend or other sum and
it ceases to remain owing by the Company.

NON-CASH DISTRIBUTIONS

Subject to the terms of issue of the Share in question, the Company may, by
ordinary resolution on the recommendation of the directors, decide to pay all or
part of a dividend or other distribution payable in respect of a Share by
transferring non-cash assets of equivalent value (including, without limitation,
Shares or other securities in any company).

For the purposes of paying a non-cash distribution, the directors may make
whatever arrangements they think fit, including, where any difficulty arises
regarding the distribution:

40.2.1 fixing the value of any assets;

40.2.2 paying cash to any distribution recipient on the basis of that value in
order to adjust the rights of recipients; and

40.2.3 vesting any assets in trustees.
WAIVER OF DISTRIBUTIONS

Distribution recipients may waive their entitlement to a dividend or other
distribution payable in respect of a Share by giving the Company notice in
writing to that effect, but if:

41.1.1 the Share has more than one holder, or

Page 44

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



42,

42.1

42.2

42.3

42.4

42.5

41.1.2 more than one person is entitled to the Share,

the notice is not effective unless it is expressed to be given, and signed, by all
the holders or persons otherwise entitled to the Share.

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

AUTHORITY TO CAPITALISE AND APPROPRIATION OF CAPITALISED
SUMS

Subject to these Articles, the directors may, if they are so authorised by an
ordinary resolution:

42.1.1 decide to capitalise any profits of the Company (whether or not they
are available for distribution) which are not required for paying a
preferential dividend, or any sum standing to the credit of the
company's share premium account or capital redemption reserve; and

42.1.2 appropriate any sum which they so decide to capitalise (a "capitalised
sum") to the persons who would have been entitled to it if it were
distributed by way of dividend (the "persons entitled") and in the same
proportions.

Capitalised sums must be applied:
42.2.1 on behalf of the persons entitled; and

42.2.2 in the same proportions as a dividend would have been distributed to
them.

Any capitalised sum may be applied in paying up new Shares of a nominal
amount equal to the capitalised sum which are then allotted credited as fully
paid to the persons entitled or as they may direct.

A capitalised sum which was appropriated from profits available for distribution
may be applied in paying up new debentures of the Company which are then
allotted credited as fully paid to the persons entitled or as they may direct.

Subject to these Articles the directors may:

42.5.1 apply capitalised sums in accordance with Articles 42.3 and 42.4
partly in one way and partly in another;

42.5.2 make such arrangements as they think fit to deal with Shares or
debentures becoming distributable in fractions under this Article 42
(including the issuing of fractional certificates or the making of cash
payments); and

Page 45

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



43.

43.1

44,

44.1

44.2

45.

45.1

45.2

42.5.3 authorise any person to enter into an agreement with the Company on
behalf of all the persons entitled which is binding on them in respect of
the allotment of Shares and debentures to them under this Article 42.

RETURN OF CAPITAL RIGHTS

The rights as regards return of capital attaching to each class of Shares shall be
as set out in this Article 43. On a return of capital on liquidation or otherwise
(except on a redemption or purchase by the Company of any Shares), the
surplus assets of the Company remaining after the payment of its liabilities
(including for the avoidance of doubt any debts arising from non-payment of
cumulative dividends) shall be applied in the following order of priority:

43.1.1 first, in paying to each holder of A Shares and B Shares in respect of
each A Share and B Share of which it is the holder, a sum equal to the
par value thereof; and

43.1.2 the balance of such assets (if any) shall be distributed amongst the
holders of the A Shares according to the amount paid up or credited as
paid up on each such A Share.

ORGANISATION OF GENERAL MEETINGS
NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS
Every notice convening a general meeting shall:

comply with section 325(1) of the 2006 Act as to giving information to
shareholders relating to their right to appoint proxies; and

be given in accordance with section 308 of the 2006 Act but shall not be given
by means of a website.

ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

A person is able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting when that
person is in a position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during
the meeting, any information or opinions which that person has on the business
of the meeting.

A person is able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when:

45.2.1 that person is able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to
the vote at the meeting, and

Page 46

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



45.3

45.4

45.5

46.

46.1

46.2

46.3

47.

47.1

47.2

48.

48.1

45.2.2  that person's vote can be taken into account in determining whether or
not such resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all
the other persons attending the meeting.

The directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropriate to
enable those attending a general meeting to exercise their rights to speak or
vote at it.

In determining attendance at a general meeting, it is immaterial whether any
two or more members attending it are in the same place as each other.

Two or more persons who are not in the same place as each other attend a
general meeting if their circumstances are such that if they have (or were to
have) rights to speak and vote at that meeting, they are (or would be) able to
exercise them.

CHAIRING GENERAL MEETINGS

If the Shareholders have appointed a Shareholders’ Chairman, the Shareholders’
Chairman shall chair general meetings if present and willing to do so.

If the Shareholders have not appointed a Shareholders’ Chairman, or if the
Shareholders’ Chairman is unwilling to chair the meeting or is not present within
30 minutes of the time at which a meeting was due to start, the meeting must
appoint a director or shareholder to chair the meeting by simple majority, and
the appointment of the chairman of the meeting must be the first business of the
meeting.

The person chairing a meeting in accordance with this Article 46 is referred to
as "the chairman of the meeting".

ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING BY DIRECTORS AND NON-SHAREHOLDERS

Directors may attend and speak at general meetings, whether or not they are
shareholders.

The chairman of the meeting may permit other persons who are not:
47.2.1 shareholders of the Company, or

47.2.2 otherwise entitled to exercise the rights of shareholders in relation to
general meetings, to attend and speak at a general meeting.

QUORUM AT GENERAL MEETINGS

No resolution shall be voted on and no other business shall be transacted at any
general meeting of the Company unless a quorum is present when such vote is

Page 47

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



48.2

48.3

49,

49.1

50.

50.1

50.2

51.

51.1

taken or other business is transacted and no resolution or transaction shall be
effective unless a quorum is so present.

A quorum shall consist of one third in number of the shareholders of the
Company for the time being present by proxy or by representative.

If a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for a
general meeting or if, during any general meeting, a quorum ceases to be
present, the general meeting shall stand adjourned until such other day and at
such other place as the chairman of the meeting may determine (or, if the
chairman does not so determine any outstanding business to be discussed at the
meeting shall be adjourned to the next general meeting) and if at the adjourned
general meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time
appointed for the same such adjourned general meeting, the general meeting
shall be dissolved.

VOTES OF SHAREHOLDERS
VOTING: GENERAL

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting must be decided on a show of
hands. No resolution shall be decided on a poll.

ERRORS AND DISPUTES

No objection may be raised to the qualification of any person voting at a general
meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected
to is tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting is valid.

Any such objection must be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose
decision is final.

CONTENT OF PROXY NOTICES

Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a "proxy notice")
which:

51.1.1 states the name and address of the shareholder appointing the proxy;

51.1.2 identifies the person appointed to be that shareholder's proxy and the
general meeting in relation to which that person is appointed;

51.1.3 is signed by or on behalf of the shareholder appointing the proxy, or is
authenticated in such manner as the directors may determine; and

Page 48

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



51.2

51.3

51.4

52.

521

52.2

52.3

52.4

53.

53.1

51.1.4 is delivered to the Company in accordance with these Articles and any
instructions contained in the notice of the general meeting to which
they relate.

The company may require proxy notices to be delivered in a particular form, and
may specify different forms for different purposes.

Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under them is to vote (or
that the proxy is to abstain from voting) on one or more resolutions.

Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated as:

51.4.1 allowing the person appointed under it as a proxy discretion as to how
to vote on any ancillary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting,
and

51.4.2 appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the
general meeting to which it relates as well as the meeting itself.

DELIVERY OF PROXY NOTICES

A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote at a general meeting remains
so entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment of it, even though a
valid proxy notice has been delivered to the Company by or on behalf of that
person.

An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the
Company a notice in writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on
whose behalf the proxy notice was given.

A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it is delivered before
the start of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates.

If a proxy notice is not executed by the person appointing the proxy, it must be
accompanied by written evidence of the authority of the person who executed it
to execute it on the appointor's behalf.

AMENDMENTS TO RESOLUTIONS

An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by
ordinary resolution if:

53.1.1 notice of the proposed amendment is given to the Company in writing
by a person entitled to vote at the general meeting at which it is to be
proposed not less than 48 hours before the meeting is to take place (or
such later time as the chairman of the meeting may determine), and

Page 49

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



53.2

53.3

54.

54.1

54.2

55.

55.1

56.

56.1

53.1.2 the proposed amendment does not, in the reasonable opinion of the
chairman of the meeting, materially alter the scope of the resolution.

A special resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by
ordinary resolution, if:

53.2.1 the chairman of the meeting proposes the amendment at the general
meeting at which the resolution is to be proposed, and

53.2.2 the amendment does not go beyond what is necessary to correct a
grammatical or other non-substantive error in the resolution.

If the chairman of the meeting, acting in good faith, wrongly decides that an
amendment to a resolution is out of order, the chairman's error does not
invalidate the vote on that resolution.

WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS

A written resolution, proposed in accordance with section 288(3) of the
Companies Act 2006, will lapse if it is not passed before the end of the period of
40 days beginning with the circulation date.

For the purposes of this Article 54 “circulation date” is the date on which copies
of the written resolution are sent or submitted to shareholders or, if copies are
sent or submitted on different dates, to the first of those dates.

NUMBER OF VOTES

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or
classes of Shares, on a written resolution every holder of A Shares has one vote
in respect of each A Share held by him and on a show of hands at a general
meeting every holder of A Shares entitled to vote and who is present by a
representative has one vote.

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
COMPANY COMMUNICATION PROVISIONS
Where:-

56.1.1 a document or information is sent by post (whether in hard copy or
electronic form) to an address in the United Kingdom and

56.1.2 the Company is able to show that it was properly addressed, prepaid
and posted,

it is deemed to have been received by the intended recipient 48 hours after it
was posted (unless the Company can demonstrate that such properly addressed

Page 50

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



56.2

56.3

56.4

57.

57.1

57.2

57.3

57.4

58.

(to an address in the United Kingdom) and posted document or information was
prepaid by first class post in which case it shall be deemed to have been
received by the intended recipient 24 hours after it was posted).

Where:-
56.2.1 a document or information is sent or supplied in electronic form, and
56.2.2 the Company is able to show that it was properly addressed,

it is deemed to have been received by the intended recipient immediately after it
was sent.

Pursuant to section 1147(6) of the 2006 Act, subsections (2) (3) and (4) of that
section shall be deemed modified by Articles 56.1 and 56.2.

Subject to any requirements of the 2006 Act, documents and notices may be
sent to the Company in electronic form to the address specified by the Company
for that purpose and such documents or notices sent to the Company are
sufficiently authenticated if the identity of the sender is confirmed in the way the
Company has specified.

COMPANY SEALS
Any common seal may only be used by the authority of the directors.

The directors may decide by what means and in what form any common seal is
to be used.

Unless otherwise decided by the directors, if the company has a common seal
and it is affixed to a document, the document must also be signed by at least
one authorised person in the presence of a withess who attests the signature.

For the purposes of this Article 57, an authorised person is:
57.4.1 any director of the Company;
57.4.2 the company secretary (if any); or

57.4.3 any person authorised by the directors for the purpose of signing
documents to which the common seal is applied.

NO RIGHT TO INSPECT ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECORDS

Except as provided by law or authorised by the directors or an ordinary
resolution, no person is entitled to inspect any of the Company's accounting or
other records or documents merely by virtue of being a shareholder.

Page 51

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



59.

59.1

59.2

60.

61.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Subject to, and so far as may be permitted by, the 2006 Act and the FCA Rules
and without prejudice to any indemnity to which the person concerned may be
otherwise entitled, the Company may indemnify every director, former director,
alternate director, secretary or other officer of the Company or of any associated
company (as defined in section 256 of the 2006 Act) against any liabilities
incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his duties or the exercise of
his powers or otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties, powers or
office, including any liability which may attach to him in respect of any
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to anything done
or omitted to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by
him as a director, former director, alternate director, secretary or other officer of
the Company or of any such associated company and against any such liability
incurred by him in connection with the Company’s activities as trustee of an
occupational pension scheme as defined in section 235(b) of the 2006 Act.

Subject to the 2006 Act the directors may purchase and maintain at the cost of
the Company insurance cover for or for the benefit of every director, former
director, alternate director, secretary or other officer of the Company or of any
associated company (as defined in section 256 of the 2006 Act) against any
liability which may attach to him in respect of any negligence, default, breach of
duty or breach of trust by him in relation to the Company (or such associated
company), including anything done or omitted to be done or alleged to have
been done or omitted to be done by him as a director, former director, alternate
director, secretary or other officer of the Company or associated company.

REGISTERED OFFICE
The Company’s registered office is to be situated in England and Wales.
LIMITED LIABILITY

The liability of the members is limited.

Page 52

lon_lib1\12248595\12
11 September 2015



Dated SIXTH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2015

(1) LONDON LGPS CIV LIMITED

(2) THOSE ENTITIES SPECIFIED IN SCHEDULE 1

Shareholders Agreement

lon_lib1\12683716\5 Page 53

1 December 2015



Eversheds LLP Tel 0845 497 9797

One Wood Street Fax 0845 497 4919
London Int +44 20 7919 4500
EC2V 7WS DX 154280 Cheapside 8

www.eversheds.com

lon_lib1\12683716\5 Page 54

1 December 2015



CONTENTS

Clause Page
1 INTERPRETATION Lottt e e e e et e et e et e et e a e a e e aaeaaeeas 1
2 BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY .ttt et e tae s as s e a e s e e nae e e neenaas 6
3 FINANCE & REGULATORY CAPITAL ttiitiitiii ittt siee it s st s e saesaasanaaasnnannans 6
4 CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY’'S AFFAIRS ... .ottt e aa e e 9
5 DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS....cuiitiiiiiiiitiie ittt sssaesanaaeannaneas 11
6 ACCOUNTING MATTERS, BUSINESS PLANS AND DIVIDEND POLICY.........cc.vueus 12
7 1Y AN PP 13
8 TRANSFER OF SHARES ..ottt sttt e e e e e e e a e e neaens 13
9 CONSEQUENCES OF BREACH ...ciiiiiiii ittt e s e st s e s e s e s e aanaanees 14
10 TERMINATION Lttt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennenannns 15
11 CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS ..ottt i enaenaennenaeaaees 16
12 B A AV 19
13 NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY ...utiitiitiitiieieiesensesnesnesnesnssaesnssnssnssnnsnnsnnsnnes 19
14 AV ER e 19
15 BT AN 2 N I ] PP 19
16 CONFLICT WITH ARTICLES. .. .ottt et et aeas 19
17 CLAIMS BY OR AGAINST SHAREHOLDERS ......ccitiiiiiiiiiiii e e e 20
18 N O T I ES . ittt e e ettt e 20
19 UNLAWFUL FETTER ON THE COMPANY’S STATUTORY POWERS ..........ccvvvennnee. 21
20 ({0 1 PP 21
21 ] S 21 2 1 I PP 21
22 EXERCISE OF POWERS ...ttt e s s it et et st st st s e s e s e s e aan e a e aneanennes 21
23 ENTIRE AGREEMENT Loiiiitiiitiii ettt s e et s n e e e e e e e aanes 21
24 AS S TGN MEN T ettt ettt e anaas 22
25 CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT .uiitiiiiiiiiiiiiie it eien e ene s 22
26 FURTHER ASSURANCE.....tiitiitiiiiei s s it e s se s sese s e s e s e saseaneaneanennes 22
27 COUNTERPARTS Lottt ittt e ettt ettt e e et e e e e e r e e e e e e e eanas 22
28 GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION .ttt vt ve e e e nasnaenasnnennaananes 22
Schedules

1 The Shareholders. . v e e e e eanas 23
2 Matters reserved for approval of Shareholders...........ccooiviiiiiiii i, 25
3 Year 1 and Year 2 Annual Budgets 27

lon_lib1\12683716\5

Page 55

1 December 2015



THIS AGREEMENT is made on the 6™ November 2015

BETWEEN

(1) LONDON LGPS CIV (registered number 09136445) whose registered office is at
Eversheds House, 70 Great Bridgewater Street, Manchester M1 5ES (“the
Company”); and

(2) EACH OF THOSE ENTITIES LISTED IN SCHEDULE 1 (“the Shareholders”).
BACKGROUND

(A) The Company was incorporated in England and Wales as a private limited
company on 17 July 2014 with registered number 09136445 under the
Companies Act 2006.

(B) The Shareholders are shareholders in the Company and have agreed to enter
into this Agreement for the purpose of recording the terms and conditions of
their joint venture and of regulating their relationship with each other and
certain aspects of the affairs of and their dealings with the Company.

(@) The Company has agreed with the Shareholders that it will comply with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement insofar as they relate to the Company
and insofar as it lawfully can do so.

OPERATIVE CLAUSES
1. INTERPRETATION

In this Agreement unless inconsistent with the context:
1.1 the following expressions have the following meanings:

“Administering Authority” an administering authority as defined in the
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations

2013
“A List Reserved Matters” those matters listed in Part A of Schedule 2
“A Shares” the A ordinary shares of £1.00 each in the

capital of the Company having the rights set
out in the Articles

“ACS"” an Authorised Contractual Scheme which is a
collective investment scheme authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

lon_lib1\12683716\5 Page 56

1 December 2015



“ACS Funds”

“Annual Budget”

“Articles”

“Authority”

“B Shares”

“B List Reserved Matters”

“Board”

“Business”

“Business Day”

“Chief Executive Officer”

“Companies Act 2006”

lon_lib1\12683716\5
1 December 2015

sub-funds of the ACS

a budget in a form to be prepared and adopted
pursuant to clauses 6.2 and 6.3 in respect of
the Company for each year, such budget for
the first year being contained at Schedule 3

the new Articles of Association in the Agreed
Form adopted or to be adopted by the
Company on or around the date of this
Agreement and references to an Article shall
mean a specific Article in the Articles as
amended from time to time

any competent governmental, administrative,
supervisory, regulatory, judicial, determinative,
disciplinary, enforcement or tax raising body,
authority, agency, board, department, court or
tribunal of any jurisdiction and whether
supranational, national, regional or local

the non-voting redeemable B shares of £1.00
each in the capital of the Company having the
rights set out in the Articles

those matters listed in Part B of Schedule 2

the Directors, or such of those Directors
present at a duly convened meeting of the
Directors at which a quorum is present in
accordance with the Articles

the business as described in clause 2 and/or
such other business as may from time to time
be carried on by the Company in accordance
with this Agreement

any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday or a
bank or public holiday in England)

the chief executive officer of the Company from
time to time as appointed by the Board in
accordance with clause 5.1

the Companies Act 2006 (as amended from
time to time)

Page 57



“Confidential Information”

“Default”

“Default Notice”

“Defaulting Shareholder”

“Director”

“Directors’ Chairman”

“electronic form”

“Encumbrance”

“Executive Directors”

“Financial Year”

lon_lib1\12683716\5
1 December 2015

has the meaning given to that expression in
clause 11.1

has the meaning given to that word in
clause 9.1

has the meaning given to that expression in
clause 9.3

has the meaning given to that expression in
clause 9.3

any duly appointed director of the Company
(including the Executive Directors and the Non-
Executive Directors) for the time being or a
duly appointed alternate of any director of the
Company

the chairman of the Board from time to time as
appointed by the Directors in accordance with
the Articles

has the meaning given in section 1168 of the
Companies Act 2006 but does not, for the
avoidance of doubt, include communication via
a website

includes any interest or equity of any person
(including, without prejudice to the generality
of the foregoing, any right to acquire, option,
right of pre-emption or right of conversion) or
any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or
assignment or any other encumbrance, priority
or security interest or arrangement of
whatsoever nature over or in the relevant
property

the Directors who exercise day to day control
over the affairs of the Company in accordance
with clause 4.4, appointed in accordance with
this Agreement and the Articles from time to
time

any accounting reference period of the
Company, of whatever duration

Pa%e 58



“hard copy form”

“LGPS”

“material breach”

n

“Non-Executive Directors

“PCSJIC”
“recognised investment

exchange”

“Regulatory Capital
Requirements”

“Regulatory Capital
Statement”

“Shares”

“Shareholders”

“Shareholders’ Chairman”

“the Statutes”

lon_lib1\12683716\5
1 December 2015

has the meaning given in section 1168 of the
Companies Act 2006

the Local Government Pension Scheme
established and governed by the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014

has the meaning given to that expression in
clause 9.2

the Directors other than the Executive Director,
appointed in accordance with this Agreement
and the Articles from time to time

Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee

has the meaning given to the expression by
section 285(1) Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000

the requirements under Article 9 of the
Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Directive 20011/61/EU as amplified or
implemented by EU Regulation 231/2013 and
any relevant other European Union or United
Kingdom instrument

the statement issued by the Company to
determine whether the Company satisfies
Regulatory Capital Requirements

A Shares and B Shares and any other shares in
the capital of the Company from time to time

those entities listed in Schedule 1 and any
other holder of Shares from time to time

has the meaning given to it in clause 4.5

the Companies Acts as defined in section 2 of
the Companies Act 2006 and every other
statute, order, regulation, instrument or other
subordinate legislation for the time being in
force relating to companies and affecting the

Pag$ 59



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

lon_lib1\12683716\5

Company

“Subsidiary” has the meaning given to it by section 1159 of
the Companies Act 2006

“in writing” hard copy form or, to the extent agreed (or
deemed to be agreed by virtue of a provision of
the Statutes) electronic form (but not to
include by means of a website)

references to any statute or statutory provision include a reference to that
statute or statutory provision as modified, re-enacted or consolidated and in
force from time to time, whether before or after the date of this Agreement and
any subordinate legislation made pursuant to it whether before or after the date
of this Agreement;

references to persons will be construed so as to include statutory bodies
(including local authorities), bodies corporate, unincorporated associations and
partnerships;

references to clauses and the Schedules are to clauses of and the Schedules to
this Agreement, and references to paragraphs are to paragraphs in the
Schedules in which such references appear and references to this Agreement
include the Schedules and any documents in the Agreed Form;

JZ8EA\ JZ8A\

any phrase introduced by the term “include”, “including”, “in particular” or any
similar expression will be construed as illustrating and will not limit the sense of
the words preceding that term;

the word “connected” has the meaning given to it (in relation to both a director
and shareholder) by section 252 of the Companies Act 2006;

the word “address” where it appears in this Agreement includes postal address
and electronic address;

the headings to the clauses of this Agreement and to the paragraphs of the
Schedules will not affect its construction.

Pagje 60

1 December 2015



2.1

3.1

3.2

lon_lib1\12683716\5

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

The business of the Company shall (unless and until otherwise determined in
accordance with this Agreement) be confined to acting as the FCA authorised
operator of an ACS to provide a collaborative platform through which the
Administering Authorities of the LGPS funds can aggregate their pension monies
and other investments. The Company will be branded as “London CIV”.

FINANCE & REGULATORY CAPITAL

Each Shareholder shall pay an annual service charge to the Company in the
amount specified in the Annual Budget in relation to services utilised by the
Company as specified in the Annual Budget.

Each Shareholder shall be required to make a contribution to the Company’s
Regulatory Capital Requirements by way of a subscription for B Shares:

3.2.1 in accordance with the Regulatory Capital Statement which will be
issued annually by the Company and approved in writing by a majority
(in number) of the Shareholders;

3.2.2 at such other times as the Directors determine that additional
regulatory capital is required by the Company and notify each of the
Shareholders in writing accordingly (including, without limitation, at
such times as the Shareholders approve (in accordance with Schedule
2) a new investor into the LGPS) (such notice being an “Additional
Regulatory Capital Statement”); and

3.2.3 at such times as any Shareholder (an “Exiting Shareholder”) ceases
to hold any A Shares (at which time any B Shares held by that
Shareholder shall be redeemed by the Company in accordance with
and subject to the Articles and the Statutes). In this regard, upon a
Shareholder giving notice to the Company pursuant to the Articles that
it wishes to withdraw as a Shareholder, the Directors shall issue a
notice in writing to each remaining Shareholder not less than six
months prior to the Withdrawal Date (as defined in the Articles) in
respect of the Exiting Shareholder, notifying the remaining
Shareholders that the Exiting Shareholder intends to withdraw as a
Shareholder and confirming the amount of replacement regulatory
capital (if any) and/or such other amount as may be required to be
contributed by the remaining Shareholders upon the redemption of the
B Shares held by the Exiting Shareholder in order to enable the
Company to effect such redemption (such other amount being also
deemed to be regulatory capital for the purpose of this clause 3) (such
notice being a "Replacement Regulatory Capital Statement”).

Pagg 61

1 December 2015



3.3 Each Shareholder shall be liable to make an equal contribution (such equal
amount payable by each Shareholder being that Shareholder’'s “Relevant
Share” of such capital requirement) in respect of any Regulatory Capital
Requirement which is specified in a Regulatory Capital Statement, Additional
Regulatory Capital Statement or Replacement Regulatory Capital Statement (as
the case may be) (each such statement being a “"Statement” for the purposes of
this clause 3), which contribution shall be satisfied by way of a subscription by
such Shareholder for such number of B Shares, at par value, as is equal to that
Shareholder’'s Relevant Share. Each Statement shall specify the date (the
“Payment Date”) by which the subscription monies must be paid to the
Company by the Shareholders.

3.4 Following receipt of a Statement, each Shareholder shall advance to the
Company its Relevant Share of the Regulatory Capital Requirement specified
therein, on or before the specified Payment Date. Upon receipt of payment, the
Company shall issue the requisite number of B Shares to each such Shareholder.

3.5 If any of the Shareholders (for this purpose, a “Failing Shareholder”) fails to
pay its Relevant Share of any Regulatory Capital Requirement on or before the
relevant Payment Date (and without prejudice to any right to bring proceedings
against the Failing Shareholder in relation to such failure) then, without
prejudice to clause 9:

3.5.1 the Company shall notify the other Shareholders (each, a “Non-
Failing Shareholder”) in writing as soon as practicable and the Non-
Failing Shareholders shall be bound to advance the Failing
Shareholder’s Relevant Share, in equal shares, by way of subscriptions
for further B Shares in accordance with this clause 3, within seven
days of receipt of such notice from the Company. If the Failing
Shareholder thereafter contributes its Relevant Share of the Regulatory
Capital Requirement (its "Repayment Amount”) the Company shall
(if the other Shareholders (or any of them) have previously satisfied
the Failing Shareholder’s contribution pursuant to this clause 3.5.1)
promptly redeem the Non-Failing Shareholders’ B Shares subscribed
for pursuant to this clause 3.5.1 in accordance with Article 27 of the
Articles (and for this purpose each Shareholder shall be deemed to
have given its prior written consent to such redemption by virtue of
entering into this Agreement);

3.5.2 any Failing Shareholder’s voting rights in relation to its A Shares shall
be immediately suspended (except in relation to resolutions to amend
the Articles or any rights attaching to the class of Shares held by the
Failing Shareholder), and the vote of the Failing Shareholder shall not
be required in relation to the approval of any A List Reserved Matter or
B List Reserved Matter, until such time as the Failing Shareholder has
subscribed for its B Shares in the Company and paid its Relevant Share

lon_lib1\12683716\5 Pag/e 62

1 December 2015



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

lon_lib1\12683716\5

of the Regulatory Capital Requirement, at which time the restrictions
set out in this clause 3.5.2 shall cease to apply; and

3.5.3 all dividends and distributions to which the Failing Shareholder would
otherwise have been entitled under this Agreement or the Articles (up
to a maximum aggregate amount equal to the Repayment Amount)
shall be applied in redeeming the B Shares subscribed for by the Non-
Failing Shareholders pursuant to clause 3.5.1 (pro rata to their
contribution to the Repayment Amount).

If the Company requires additional funds or financial support from the
Shareholders other than as explicitly provided for in this clause 3, no
Shareholder shall seek to agree terms with the Company in relation to such
matter which differ from those on which any other Shareholder is providing
equivalent finance or support.

The Shareholders agree that, subject to clauses 3.8 and 3.9, the aggregate
amount of any actual liability incurred by any or all of them pursuant to any joint
and several guarantee or indemnity given by any or all of them to any third
party in respect of any liabilities or obligations of the Company, or pursuant to
any sole or several guarantee or indemnity given in respect of such obligations
or liabilities by any of them with the consent in writing of the others, shall be
borne by them in equal proportions and each shall indemnify and keep
indemnified the others accordingly. Subject to clause 3.8, no Shareholder shall
be obliged to provide any guarantee in respect of any liabilities or obligations of
the Company unless all the Shareholders have given their unanimous approval to
the Shareholders providing such guarantees on the terms of this clause 3.7. For
the avoidance of doubt, this clause 3.7 shall not apply to any obligations related
to the Company’s Regulatory Capital Requirements.

If any liability incurred as aforesaid is solely attributable to the act or default of
one Shareholder then, notwithstanding clause 3.7, the whole of such liability
shall be borne by such Shareholder who shall indemnify and keep indemnified
the other Shareholders accordingly.

Where any Shareholders combine and sell any Shares back to the Company
pursuant to clause 8.3, any such newly combined entity shall assume any and
all of the aggregate liabilities of its original component separate entities in
relation to this Agreement.

Save as set out in clauses 3.1 to 3.5 there shall be no obligation upon the
Shareholders to subscribe for Shares in the Company or to provide, or procure to
be provided, to the Company loans or loan facilities.

The Shareholders agree that the Company, acting by the Directors, shall have
the power to seek funding by way of borrowings on behalf of the Company from

Pagse 63

1 December 2015



any third

party commercial lender, provided that the Directors seek to obtain any

such funding on the most favourable terms reasonably available as to interest,
repayment and security and without allowing any prospective lender a right to
participate in the equity share capital of the Company as a condition of any such
loan or to take any Encumbrance over any of the Shares.

4, CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS

4.1 Each Shareholder covenants with the others that so long as this Agreement
remains in full force and effect it will:

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.1.8

lon_lib1\12683716\5

1 December 2015

be just and true to, and act in good faith towards, the others;

promptly notify the others of any matters of which it becomes aware
which may affect the Company or the Business;

generally do all things necessary to give effect to the terms of this
Agreement;

use all reasonable endeavours to promote and develop the business of
the Company and any Subsidiaries to the best advantage in accordance
with good business practice and the highest ethical standards;

appoint a representative to act on behalf of that Shareholder at general
meetings, which representative shall be the same person as that
Shareholder has appointed to represent it within the PCSIC;

take all steps available to it to ensure that any general meeting has the
necessary quorum throughout;

exercise all voting and other rights and powers of control as are from
time to time respectively available to it under this Agreement and the
Articles and otherwise in relation to the Company and its beneficial
holdings in it and will execute and deliver such waivers and shall take
or refrain from taking all other appropriate action within its power so
as to procure that the provisions of this Agreement binding on it are
duly observed and complied with and given full force and effect and all
actions required by it are carried out promptly;

if it shall not be possible to secure the operation of this Agreement as
set out in clauses 4.1.6 and 4.1.7 by reason of any contrary provision
of the Articles, exercise all voting and other rights and powers
respectively available to it to procure the alteration of the Articles to
the extent necessary to permit the affairs of the Company to be so
operated;

Pa%e 64



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

lon_lib1\12683716\5

4.1.9 subject to the preceding provisions of this clause 4.1, observe the
provisions of the Articles.

The undertakings of each Shareholder under this clause 4 shall in each case be
several so that each Shareholder shall only be liable for its own actions or
failures to act in accordance with them, and none of them shall be liable for a
failure to procure anything required by this clause 4 where such failure is
attributable to any action or failure to act by another Shareholder, but without
prejudice to the liability of such other Shareholder.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, should any Shareholder
or any other person connected with it be in dispute with or have a conflict of
interest with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, such Shareholder shall not
do or omit to do anything which would or would be likely to prevent the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries from exercising or from deciding whether or
not to exercise such rights as it may have against the Shareholder in dispute
with it, or in respect of the matter in relation to which the conflict of interest
arises. This clause 4.3 is without prejudice to the provisions of clause 17.

The management of the Company shall be vested in the Board provided that the
day to day management of the Company will be the responsibility of the
Executive Directors. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing and
subject to the express provisions of this Agreement, the Board will determine the
general policy of the Company and the manner in which that is to be carried out
and will reserve to itself all matters involving major or unusual decisions and will
procure that the Company and its Subsidiaries will:

4.4.1 transact the Business on arm’s length terms;

4.4.2 maintain, with a well-established and reputable insurer, adequate
insurance against all risks usually insured against by companies
carrying on the same or a similar business and (without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing) for the full replacement or
reinstatement value of all its assets of an insurable nature; and

4.4.3 comply with the provisions of clause 5.

The chairman of the PCSIC from time to time shall chair general meetings of the
Company unless the Shareholders otherwise appoint another person to act as the
chair of any particular General Meeting of the Company by a majority decision at
the beginning of that General Meeting of the Company or otherwise appoint
another person generally to chair such General Meetings (and the chairman of
the PCSIC or such other person appointed pursuant to this clause 4.5 shall be
known as the “Shareholders’ Chairman”). The Shareholders’ Chairman may be
removed and replaced by the Shareholders at any time by ordinary resolution. If
the Shareholders’ Chairman for the time being is unable to attend any General

Page 65

1 December 2015



4.6

4.7

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

lon_lib1\12683716\5

Meeting of the Company, another person shall be selected by the Shareholders
to chair such General Meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company and the Shareholders agree to procure that an AGM is held once
each year with a view to approving the Annual Budget and any other resolutions
to be proposed.

The Company shall not carry out any of the:

4.7.1 A List Reserved Matters, without the prior approval in writing (including
in electronic form) of all Shareholders; or

4.7.2 B List Reserved Matters, without the prior approval in writing (including
in electronic form) of a majority in number of the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The parties agree that the Directors shall be appointed by the Board in
accordance with the Articles. At all times the Directors shall comprise at least
five (5) Directors. The intention of the Shareholders is that, as far as possible,
the Directors shall comprise (3) Executive Directors and at least three (3) Non-
Executive Directors. One of the Executive Directors shall be appointed by the
Board as the Chief Executive Officer. One of the Non-Executive Directors shall be
appointed by the Board as the Directors’ Chairman pursuant to the Articles. The
Company, acting through the Directors, shall notify the Shareholders in writing
upon the appointment of each Director. The Board will at all times ensure there
is a company secretary. The first company secretary shall be Eversecretary
Limited. Should any Director, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman or the
company secretary resign or be removed from their position, the Company shall
procure that the Board will replace such officer as soon as reasonably
practicable.

Prior to the appointment of any person as a Director, the Company will procure
that such person, if appointed as an Executive Director, enters into a service
agreement with the Company, or if appointed as a Non-Executive Director,
enters into a letter of appointment with the Company.

Unless otherwise agreed, the Company shall procure that Board meetings shall
be convened and held at least four times a year on a quarterly basis and each
such meeting shall be convened by a notice sent to all Directors (or their
alternates) entitled to receive notice of such in accordance with the Articles and
every such notice shall be accompanied by a written agenda specifying the
matters to be raised at the meeting together with copies of all papers to be laid
before the meeting.

It is intended that a remuneration committee will be appointed in due course to
determine the remuneration of the directors.

Pa%e 66

1 December 2015



6. ACCOUNTING MATTERS, BUSINESS PLANS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

6.1 The Shareholders and the Company shall procure that:

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

the Company shall maintain accurate and complete accounting and
other financial records in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and generally accepted accounting practices applicable
in the United Kingdom;

the accounting reference period of the Company shall be consecutive
periods of twelve months commencing on 1 April and it shall prepare
its audited accounts accordingly, such audited annual accounts to be
provided to the Shareholders within 120 calendar days of the end of
the accounting reference period concerned and in accordance with The
Local Audit and Accountability Regulations 2015 and the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 and related guidance; and

the Company shall prepare quarterly management accounts in relation
to the Company containing such information as each party shall
reasonably require and which shall be despatched by the Company to
each of the Directors within 30 calendar days of the end of the quarter
concerned.

6.2 The Company shall prepare an Annual Budget for the Company for each Financial
Year in accordance with clause 6.3.

6.3 Each Annual Budget shall include the following:

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

an estimate of the working capital requirements of the Company
incorporated within a cashflow forecast;

a projected profit and loss account;

an operating budget (including estimated capital expenditure
requirements) and balance sheet forecast;

a review of projected business;
a summary of business objectives; and

a financial report which includes an analysis of the results of the
Company for the previous Financial Year compared with the business
plan for that Financial Year, identifying variations in sales, revenues,
costs and other material items.

6.4 The Annual Budget for the first two Financial Years, ending on 31 March 2016
and 31 March 2017 respectively, are set out at Schedule 3. Annual Budgets for
subsequent Financial Years shall be submitted for approval by (i) the Board not

lon_lib1\12683716\5

1 December 2015

Pagle2 67



6.5

6.6

8.1

8.2

lon_lib1\12683716\5

later than 90 days before the commencement of the Financial Year to which they
relate; and (ii) the Shareholders not later than 60 days before the
commencement of the Financial Year to which they relate. If the Board or a
majority of the Shareholders fail to approve the Annual Budget in respect of any
future Financial Year commencing after 31 March 2017, the Annual Budget in
respect of the immediately preceding Financial Year shall apply, increased by the
Consumer Price Index as published by the United Kingdom Office for National
Statistics in September of the previous Financial Year (the "CPI"). In the event
that the CPI is negative there shall be no increase and the Annual Budget will
remain the same as for the previous Financial Year.

Subject to circumstances prevailing at the relevant time including, in particular,
the forecast working capital requirements of the Company and any of its
Subsidiaries, the Company may use any of its profits available for distribution
(save for any such profits which are attributable to any interest or income
received by the Company in respect of any investments held by the ACS Funds)
in reducing the Annual Budget in future years or may distribute such profits to
the Shareholders by way of dividend in accordance with the Articles.

In deciding whether in respect of any Financial Year the Company and its
Subsidiaries had consolidated profits available for distribution the Board may
procure that the auditors from time to time of the Company certify whether such
profits are available or not and the amount thereof (if any). In giving such
certificate the auditors shall act as experts and not arbitrators and their
determination shall be final and binding on the parties.

VAT

Unless otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, all sums required to be
paid or other consideration to be provided under or in connection with this
Agreement for taxable supplies of goods or services are to be treated as
exclusive of the VAT chargeable on the payment or other consideration and,
subject to receipt of a valid VAT invoice, VAT will be payable in addition to the
relevant payment or consideration at the applicable rate.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

No Shareholder may transfer any Shares other than pursuant to a purchase by
the Company of such Shares in accordance with the Articles, this Agreement and
the Companies Act 2006, as appropriate.

Save as contemplated in this Agreement, each of the Shareholders undertakes
that it will not create or permit to exist any Encumbrance over or in respect of all
or any part of its Shares nor assign or otherwise purport to deal with its
beneficial ownership in, or any right relating to, its Shares separate from the
legal ownership of such Shares.

Pa%e 68

1 December 2015



8.3

8.4

8.5

9.1

9.2

lon_lib1\12683716\5

In the event that two or more Shareholders combine, such combined entity may
only hold one (1) A Share following such combination and any other A Shares
held by such combined entity or its separate, component predecessor
Shareholders shall be purchased by the Company at par value, subject to and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and such combined entity shall co-
operate with the Company to effect such purchase.

In the event of a Shareholder ceasing to be a Shareholder (an “Exiting
Shareholder”), the Exiting Shareholder shall pay to the Company, in addition to
any monies owing by the Exiting Shareholder to the Company as at the date on
which it ceases to be a Shareholder, such sum as represents the contribution to
the capitalised value of that proportion of the continuing and outstanding
liabilities of the Company which extend beyond such date and which is properly
attributable to the Exiting Shareholder’s membership of the Company.

In the event that the Company is incapable of implementing a purchase of its
own Shares as anticipated by clauses 8.3 or 9.3, any Shareholder that would
otherwise be required to sell its Share(s) back to the Company agrees that it
shall not exercise any rights to vote, accept any dividend nor exercise any other
rights attached to such Share(s) until such time as the Company is able to and
does implement the proposed purchase of the relevant Share(s).

CONSEQUENCES OF BREACH

A Shareholder shall be deemed to have committed an act of default (in this
clause 9 called a "Default”) if:

9.1.1 it commits a material breach of its obligations under this Agreement
which cannot effectively be remedied or which the Shareholder fails
effectively to remedy within 15 Business Days of receipt of a notice in
writing from a majority of the Shareholders or the Company specifying
the breach and requiring remedy;

9.1.2 it fails to participate in two consecutive duly convened general
meetings (without good reason); or

9.1.3 any of the events contained in Article 35 (Deemed transfers to the
Company) occur in respect of such Shareholder.

For the purposes of clause 9.1 the expression “material breach” means a
breach of any of the terms of this Agreement which is serious in the widest sense
of having a serious effect on the benefit which any other Shareholder would
otherwise derive from this Agreement. In deciding whether any breach is
material no referral shall be had to whether it occurs by some accident, mishap,
mistake or misunderstanding.

Page 69

1 December 2015



9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

lon_lib1\12683716\5

if a Shareholder (in this clause 9 called a “Defaulting Shareholder”) is
deemed to have committed a Default, a majority of the Shareholders or the
Company may at any time within 30 Business Days of becoming aware of the
Default serve notice in writing (a "“Default Notice”) on the Defaulting
Shareholder in which event the Defaulting Shareholder shall be required to sell
its A Share back to the Company at par value. In the event of any failure by the
Defaulting Shareholder to co-operate with the Company to effect such purchase,
the Defaulting Shareholder hereby irrevocably and unconditionally appoints the
Company as its attorney for the purposes of executing such documents as are
necessary to effect such purchase.

TERMINATION
This Agreement shall terminate when:
10.1.1  all the Shareholders agree in writing to its termination;

10.1.2 the Company passes a resolution for its winding up, is subject to an
order or notice issued by a court or other authority of competent
jurisdiction for its winding up or striking off or has an administrator
appointed in respect of it;

10.1.3 the ACS is wound up or the Company loses its status as an FCA
authorised operator of collective investment schemes; or

10.1.4 such number of Shareholders decide to withdraw from the Company
that a majority of the remaining Shareholders (after any such
withdrawals) inform the Company in writing (including in electronic
form) that they are no longer able or willing to maintain the Company’s
Regulatory Capital Requirements.

The following provisions of this Agreement remain in full force after termination:
10.2.1 Clause 1 (interpretation);

10.2.2 this clause 10;

10.2.3 Clause 11 (confidentiality);

10.2.4 Clause 14 (waiver);

10.2.5 Clause 15 (variation);

10.2.6 Clause 18 (notices);

10.2.7 Clause 20 (costs);

10.2.8 Clause 21 (severability);

Pagse 70

1 December 2015



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

11.

11.1

lon_lib1\12683716\5

10.2.9 Clause 23 (entire agreement);
10.2.10 Clause 28 (governing law and jurisdiction).

Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights or liabilities that the
Shareholders have accrued under it.

In the event that the ACS has been wound up in accordance with the FCA Rules,
and there is no intention by the Shareholders to replace the ACS, the
Shareholders shall commence a winding up of the Company.

Where the Company is to be wound up and its assets distributed pursuant to
clause 10.1.2, the Shareholders shall agree a suitable basis for dealing with the
interests and assets of the Company and shall endeavour to ensure that:

10.5.1 all existing contracts of the Company are performed to the extent that
there are sufficient resources;

10.5.2 the Company shall not enter into any new contractual obligations;

10.5.3 the Company is dissolved and its assets are distributed as soon as
practicable (and any assets available for distribution to Shareholders
shall be distributed to them in accordance with the proportion of
Shares held by them); and

10.5.4 any proprietary information or intellectual property rights belonging to
or originating from a Shareholder shall be returned to it by the
Company as relevant.

If at any time a Shareholder ceases to hold Shares as a result of a transfer of
Shares made in accordance with this Agreement or the Articles, this Agreement
(save for those clauses specified in clause 10.2) shall terminate with respect
to that Shareholder.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

In this clause the expression “Confidential Information” means any
information:

11.1.1  which any of the Shareholders may have or acquire (whether before or
after the date of this Agreement) in relation to the business, assets or
affairs of the Company;

11.1.2 which any Shareholder may have or acquire (whether before or after
the date of this Agreement) in relation to the business, assets or affairs
of another party as a consequence of the negotiations relating to this
Agreement or the performance of this Agreement; or

Pagle6 71

1 December 2015



11.1.3

which relates to the contents of this Agreement (or any agreement or
arrangement entered into pursuant to this Agreement),

but excludes the information in clause 11.2.

11.2 Information is not Confidential Information if:

11.2.1

11.2.2

11.2.3

11.2.4

it is or becomes public knowledge other than as a direct or indirect
result of the information being disclosed in breach of this Agreement;
or

any Shareholder can establish to the reasonable satisfaction of the
other Shareholders that it found out the information from a source not
connected with the other Shareholders and that the source was not
under any obligation of confidence in respect of the information; or

any Shareholder can establish to the reasonable satisfaction of the
other Shareholders that the information was known to it before the
date of this Agreement and that it was not under any obligation of
confidence in respect of the information; or

the Shareholders agree in writing that it is not confidential.

11.3 Each Shareholder shall at all times use all reasonable endeavours to keep
confidential any Confidential Information and shall not use or disclose any such
confidential information except:

11.3.1

11.3.2

11.3.3

11.3.4

11.3.5

to a Shareholder’s professional advisers where such disclosure is for a
proper purpose related to the operation of this Agreement; or

with the consent in writing of such of the Company, any Subsidiaries,
or the Shareholders to which the information relates; or

as may be required by law or by the rules of any recognised
investment exchange or Authority, when the Shareholder concerned
shall, if practicable, supply a copy of the required disclosure to the
other Shareholders, in sufficient time before it is disclosed to enable
the other Shareholders to consider and suggest amendments to it, and
incorporate any amendments reasonably required by the others; or

to any tax authority to the extent reasonably required for the purposes
of the tax affairs of the Shareholder concerned; or

if the information comes within the public domain (otherwise than as a
result of the breach of this clause 11.3).

11.4 Each Shareholder shall inform (and shall use all reasonable endeavours to
procure that the Company shall inform) any officer, employee or agent or any

lon_lib1\12683716\5

1 December 2015

Pa%e 72



professional adviser advising it in relation to the matters referred to in this
Agreement, or to whom it provides Confidential Information, that such
information is confidential and shall require them:

11.4.1 to keep it confidential; and

11.4.2 not to disclose it to any third party (other than those persons to whom
it has already been disclosed in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement).

11.5 Upon termination of this Agreement, any of the Shareholders may demand from
the others and the Company the return of any documents containing Confidential
Information in relation to that Shareholder by notice in writing whereupon the
other Shareholders shall (and shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that
its officers, employees, agents and professional advisers of it and those the
Company shall) (save for any submission to or filings with any Authority):

11.5.1 return such documents; and

11.5.2 destroy any copies of such documents and any other document or
other record reproducing, containing or made from or with reference to
the Confidential Information.

11.6 Any return or destruction pursuant to clause 11.5 shall take place as soon as
practicable after the receipt of any such notice.

11.7 The obligations of each of the Shareholders in this clause 11 shall continue
without limit in time and notwithstanding termination of this Agreement for any
cause.

11.8 None of the parties shall make or permit or authorise the making of any press
release or other public statement or disclosure concerning the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or any matter arising out of or ancillary to it
including any dispute between the parties in respect of such transactions or
ancillary matters or the termination of this Agreement or cessation without the
prior consent in writing of the other parties (except as required by any
recognised investment exchange or any Authority) but before any party makes
any such release, statement or disclosure it shall where practicable first supply a
copy of it to the other parties and shall incorporate any amendments or additions
they may each reasonably require. Nothing in this clause 11.8 shall prevent any
party from commencing or pursuing arbitration proceedings or court proceedings
which are ancillary to and commenced purely in support of arbitration
proceedings in relation to this Agreement or any matter arising out of or ancillary
to it.

P 7
lon_lib1\12683716\5 agles 3
1 December 2015



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

lon_lib1\12683716\5

WARRANTIES

Each Shareholder warrants to the others that it has full power and authority, and
has obtained the consent of any third party necessary, to enter into and perform
this Agreement.

NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a partnership between the
Shareholders or constitute one the agent of another and none of the
Shareholders shall do or suffer anything to be done whereby it shall or may be
represented that it is the partner or agent of another Shareholder unless such
Shareholder is appointed partner or agent of that other Shareholder with the
consent in writing of that Shareholder.

WAIVER

The waiver by any Shareholder or by the Company of any default by any other
Shareholder or by the Company in the performance of any obligation of such
other Shareholder or the Company under this Agreement shall not affect such
Shareholder’s or the Company’s rights in respect of any other default nor any
subsequent default of the same or of a different kind nor shall any delay or
omission of any Shareholder or of the Company to exercise any right arising from
any default, affect or prejudice the rights of that Shareholder or of the Company
as to the same or any future default. For the avoidance of doubt and without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any failure by any Shareholder to
comment upon or raise any objection to the fact that any matter referred to in
Schedule 2 has been effected without the consent of the requisite number of
Shareholders shall not be deemed to constitute consent to such action and nor
shall the taking of any such action on any two or more occasions without such
comment or objection be deemed to constitute accepted general practice.

VARIATION

Any variation of any term of this Agreement shall be in writing duly signed by
each of the Shareholders and the Company.

CONFLICT WITH ARTICLES

Where the provisions of the Articles conflict with the provisions of this
Agreement, the Shareholders agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall
prevail, to the intent that they shall if necessary in any case procure the
amendment of the Articles to the extent required to enable the Company and its
affairs to be administered as provided in this Agreement.

Pagge 74

1 December 2015



17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

lon_lib1\12683716\5

CLAIMS BY OR AGAINST SHAREHOLDERS

Where any of the Shareholders asserts any claim against the Company (the
“Claiming Shareholder”), the other Shareholders shall be entitled to defend
such claim in the name and at the expense of the Company.

Where any of the Shareholders asserts that the Company has any claim against
any of the other Shareholders, the Shareholder so asserting shall be entitled to
pursue such claim in the name and at the expense of the Company.

Where any other provision of this Agreement or of the Articles conflicts with the
provisions of this clause, this clause shall prevail.

NOTICES

Subject to the provisions of the Articles regulating certain types of notices from
the Company to the Shareholders:

any demand, notice or other communication given or made under or in
connection with this Agreement will be in writing;

any such demand, notice or other communication will, if given or made in
accordance with this clause 18, be deemed to have been duly given or made as
follows:

18.2.1 if sent by prepaid post, on the second Business Day after the date of
posting (or, where sent by prepaid first class post, on the first Business
Day after the day of posting); or

18.2.2 if delivered by hand, upon delivery at the address provided for in this
clause 18; or

18.2.3 if sent in electronic form and properly addressed, immediately after it
was sent;

provided however that, if it is delivered by hand or sent in electronic form on a
day which is not a Business Day or after 4.00 pm on a Business Day, it will
instead be deemed to have been given or made on the next Business Day.

Any such demand, notice or other communication will, in the case of service by
post or delivery by hand, be addressed to the recipient at the recipient’s address
stated in this Agreement or at such other address as may from time to time be
notified in writing by the recipient to the sender as being the recipient’s address
for service.

Any such demand, notice or other communication will, in the case of service in
electronic form, be sent to the recipient using an electronic address then used by
the recipient.

Pagz% 75

1 December 2015



18.5

19.

19.1

19.2

20.

21.

22.

23.

lon_lib1\12683716\5

For the avoidance of doubt, where proceedings have been issued in the Courts of
England and Wales, the provisions of the Civil Procedure Rules must be complied
with in respect of the service of documents in connection with those proceedings.

UNLAWFUL FETTER ON THE COMPANY’S STATUTORY POWERS

Notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Agreement the Company
shall not be bound by any provision of this Agreement to the extent that it would
constitute an unlawful fetter on any statutory power of the Company, but any
such provision shall remain valid and binding as regards all other parties to
which it is expressed to apply.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to be a resolution of all the
members of the Company in the absence of a properly passed resolution in
accordance with the Articles.

COSTS

Each of the Shareholders will pay their own costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, completion and
implementation of this Agreement.

SEVERABILITY

The illegality, invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement
will not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of the remainder. If any such
provision is found by any competent court or authority to be illegal, invalid or
unenforceable the parties agree that they will substitute provisions in a form as
similar to the offending provisions as is possible without rendering them illegal,
invalid or unenforceable.

EXERCISE OF POWERS

Words denoting an obligation on a party to do any act, matter or thing include,
except as otherwise specified, an obligation to use all reasonable endeavours to
procure that it be done and words placing a party under a restriction include an
obligation not to permit or allow so far as the same is possible infringement of
that restriction.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement and the Articles constitute the entire contractual relationship
between the parties in relation thereto and there are no representations,
promises, terms, conditions or obligations between the parties other than those
contained or expressly referred to therein. This clause does not restrict liability of
any party arising as a result of any fraud.

Pagle 76

1 December 2015



24,

25.

25.1

25.2

26.

27.

28.

28.1

28.2

ASSIGNMENT

None of the Shareholders shall assign or transfer or purport to assign or transfer
any of its rights or obligations hereunder.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT

This Agreement shall be binding on and enforceable by the Shareholders and by
the Company.

Except as provided in clause 25.1, the parties to this Agreement do not intend
that any of its terms will be enforceable by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of
Third Parties) Act 1999 by any person not a party to it.

FURTHER ASSURANCE

Each Shareholder and the Company shall promptly execute and deliver all such
documents, and do all such things, as the Company or any other Shareholder
may from time to time reasonably require for the purpose of giving full effect to
the provisions of this Agreement.

COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
is an original and which together have the same effect as if each party had
executed the same document.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

The formation, existence, construction, performance, validity and all aspects
whatsoever of this Agreement or of any term of this Agreement and any non-
contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it will be governed by
the law of England and Wales.

The courts of England and Wales will have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any
dispute which arises out of or in connection with this Agreement including
(without limitation) in relation to any non-contractual obligations. The parties
irrevocably agree to submit to that jurisdiction.

THIS DOCUMENT is executed as a deed and delivered on the date stated at the
beginning of this Deed.

lon_lib1\12683716\5

Pagze2 77

1 December 2015



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

lon_lib1\12683716\5

SCHEDULE 1

The Shareholders

City of London Corporation
London Borough of Barnet
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
London Borough of Bexley
London Borough of Brent
London Borough of Camden
London Borough of Croydon
London Borough of Ealing
London Borough of Enfield
London Borough of Hackney
London Borough of Haringey
London Borough of Harrow
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham
London Borough of Hounslow
London Borough of Islington
London Borough of Lambeth
London Borough of Lewisham
London Borough of Merton
London Borough of Newham
London Borough of Redbridge
London Borough of Southwark

London Borough of Sutton

Pagg: 78

1 December 2015



23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.

30.

lon_lib1\12683716\5

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

London Borough of Waltham Forest

London Borough of Richmond Upon Thames
Royal Borough of Greenwich

Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames
Wandsworth London Borough Council

Westminster City Council

Pagﬁ 79

1 December 2015



SCHEDULE 2

Matters reserved for approval of Shareholders

Unless approved in accordance with the requirements of clause 4.7, the Parties shall
procure that the Company does not:

PART A

1. subject to FCA rules, extend the activities of the Company outside the scope of the
business or close down any business operation;

2. subject to FCA rules, give any guarantee or indemnity outside the ordinary course
of business to secure the liabilities of any person or assume the obligations of any
person (other than a wholly owned subsidiary) (e.g. guaranteeing a lease that
does not relate to the business of the Company);

3. subject to FCA rules, enter into or vary any contracts or arrangements with any of
the shareholders or Directors (other than service agreements and letters of
appointment as directors) or any person with whom any shareholder or Director is
connected (whether as director, consultant, shareholder or otherwise) (eg any
contract which could give preferential rights to a specific shareholder);

4, enter into any agreement not in the ordinary course of the business and/or which
is not on an arm's length basis;

5. enter into or vary any agreement for the provision of consultancy, management or
other services by any person which will, or is likely to result in, the Company
being managed otherwise than by its Directors;

6. change the name of the Company;

7. pass a resolution or present a petition to wind up the Company or apply for an
administration order or any order having similar effect in a different jurisdiction in
relation to the Company unless in any case the Company is at the relevant time
unable to pay its debts within the meaning of section 123 Insolvency Act 1986;

8. reduce or cancel any share capital of the Company, purchase its own shares, hold
any shares in treasury, allot or agree to allot, whether actually or contingently,
any of the share capital of the Company or any security of the Company
convertible into share capital, grant any options or other rights to subscribe for or
to convert any security into shares of the Company or alter the classification of
any part of the share capital of the Company (in each case other than as expressly
contemplated by this Agreement and/or the Articles including, without limitation,
pursuant to clauses 3 and 9 and Article 26 of the Articles (Issue of Shares and
Pre-Emption Rights));

lon_lib1\12683716\5 Pagse 80

1 December 2015



9. redeem or buy any shares or otherwise reorganise the share capital of the
Company (in each case other than as expressly contemplated by this Agreement
and/or the Articles including, without limitation, any redemption of B Shares by
the Company pursuant to clauses 3 and 9 and Article 27 of the Articles (Rights
Attaching to the Shares), Article 34 of the Articles (Shareholder Withdrawal) and
Article 35 of the Articles (Deemed transfers to the Company);

10. admit any person (other than a London Local Authority) as a member of the
Company or an investor in the LGPS;

11. enter into any partnership, joint venture or profit sharing arrangement with any
person;

12. alter any of the provisions of the Articles or any of the rights attaching to the
shares;

13. amalgamate or merge with any other company or business undertaking;

14. sell, lease (as lessor), license (as licensor), transfer or otherwise dispose of any of
its material assets otherwise than in the ordinary course of the business;

PART B

1. enter into or vary any licence or other similar agreement relating to intellectual
property to be licensed to or by the Company which is otherwise than in the
ordinary course of business;

2. appoint or remove the auditors of the Company;

3. alter the Company's accounting reference date;

4, make any significant change to any of the Company's accounting or reporting
practices other than conforming with any changes made to the accounting
standards adopted by the Company;

5. approve the annual accounts of the Company;

6. establish or amend any pension scheme (i.e. for employees of the Company);

7. remove any Director of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act 2006;

8. make any capitalisation, repayment or other distribution of any amount standing
to the credit of any reserve of the Company or pay or declare any dividend or
other distribution to the shareholders;

9. subject to FCA rules, enter into any agency, distribution or similar agreement

lon_lib1\12683716\5

which confers or is expressed to confer any element of exclusivity as regards any
goods or services the subject of such agreement or as to the area of the
agreement or vary such an agreement to include any such exclusivity.

PagzeG 81

1 December 2015



Service Charge
BPS charge
Interest income
TOTAL REVENUE

Pre-trading

Staff

Premises

Legal & Prof
Travel & Sub
Office services
Technology
Disaster recovery
FCA fees

Internal Audit
Shared services
Other

TOTAL EXPENSES

Profit

YEAR 1 AND YEAR 2 ANNUAL BUDGETS

1
Yr End 31/3/16

SCHEDULE 3

Yr End 31/3/17

750,000 775,000
250,000 1,350,694
29,688 73,918
1,029,688 2,199,612

250,000 -
318,703 828,147
28,767 69,041
104,167 155,000
8,333 22,000
5,892 14,140
13,013 30,605
4,167 15,000
940 2,301
10,417 100,000
45,366 108,878
2,778 35,843
792,542 1,380,955
237,146 818,658
Page 82

7

lon_lib1\12683716\5

1 December 2015



Executed as a deed by
LONDON LGPS CIV LIMITED
acting by one director Signature of director

in the presence of:

Witness Signature: /- \/ W

Witness Name: NI SUiTH

Witness Address: |8 Be(DGEWATEZ HOuSE  [onDoN, EC2) 8AG

Witness Occupation: ﬁ;‘J MJCE DIQECTa g

Executed as a deed when the seal of
CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION was affixed

in the presence of: - L ved

gl
Witness Signature: D-c/(_a\_,L_ WFQL

Witness Name:  AZs7 - { 1T~ S0uic (T

Witness Address: quitditi . Leapev 072

Witness Occupation: A= . Ut st

Ma. IN S&ns |

Executed as a deed when the seal of ' REGIET |
oy L }

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET was affixed .zxés Lf'-

in the presence of:

Witness Signature:

Witness Name:

Witness Address:

Witness Occupation: /W

H&RO oF Goverran(é STRATEGIC Dived v
ANORZ Ew Cridel woeh, Foc o mon (SSION (G
HKATE KENN F}Ll_l/..

Page 83

lon_lib1\12683716\5 28
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING AND DAGENHAM was affixed

in the presence of:
Witness Signature: @ @G:L\P@
A *gﬂﬁﬁ
4D am:ak; Qo
Withess-Occupation: 2ok theres? Nowde Ne. m%@tgﬂﬂ&’m trede

Executed as a deed when the seal of 2is87
LONDON BOROUGH OF BEXLEY was affixed

in the presence of:

WitRress-Sighature! I
Witress-Name! ‘ _

j}‘ie“"'::‘_j Dvrechkor «:1’_ i Acnce

NNy 7 /2

g - - ~
_\Dfp—*ﬂf_‘_’; Do r P2 =

C.c&:-rxr-:--.g_ﬁ-:_ésf.‘. S S

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT was affixed

in the presence of:
Witness Signature: %y‘_\rf\él\
Witness Name: AL MENGHER

Witness Address:  JEE WiPgess bELow (pRevr cwic Cevire:
Witness Occupation: Soh ot 1ok |

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HAQ OFJ

Page 84
lon_lib1\12683716\5 29
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF CAMDEN was affixed

in the presence of: W
Witness Signhature: M
Witness Name: ANDREV\I MAUGHAN)

Witness Address:  CAMDEN COUNCIL, 5 PANCRAS SAUARE , NIC 4AQ
Witness Occupation: BOROUGH SOLIC/TOE.

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON was affixed

in the presence of: S Mg\

Witress-Signature:
WithressName—
WitressAddress—

. , LM REG NS Q43245
Withess-Oeenpations

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF EALING was affixed

~

in the presence of:

Witness Signt—iti]re./ N
Witness Name: H=cN) HALZAS
Witness Address: Q(O o é}ﬁ—b. ~J C’r

Witness Occupation: D /Z =< TQ £ o < LEaRT
. DEMOKATIC SCRVICES

Page 85

lon_lib1\12683716\5 30
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD was affixed

in the presence of:

Witness Signature:

Witness Name: A Huioaw? s e sl
g CW; N7 Ce‘%bfﬁ

Witness Address: ¢; (UQ/_ sgfgj_{ E,\.Jl 5)0-{ )
Witness Occupation:%gﬂﬂ{ Wﬁf WW

& GovernaidL

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF HACKNEY was affixed

in the presence of: m
-

mﬁ%/&u;;nijv
—

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY was affixed

b Oralest
e BReseRan-ai
cust S dnakuial

S e Gpctn

Whispass-Address,

Witrmress-Occupation:

Page 86
lon_lib1\12683716\5 31
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW was affixed

in the presence of:
Witness Signature: #

Witness Name: ﬁsggg;n{ N\eu—m

Witness Address: (_wic (_'r»mae’, Statied Q"’"‘D,
Hatksw , HaL zuH

Witness Occupation: SetitiTol.

Executed as a deed when the s€al of
LONDON BOROUGH OF HKMMERSMITH AND FULHAM was affixed I5/6|

in the presence of:

Witness Address:

ss Occupation: |
Hhe Common) DAL OF e Vator And
édﬂ%,sse-s &r Tre hondoo Boreoc
= 45
Hamm eLsmi ! AND FULHAM wa g,
Heteopto AR Ay OLDEL |93e
OF

Hea

elz—~_

AN Avikstiscd a4 e

Executed as a deed when the seal of

LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLO s affixed
in the presence of: MAY Uk NIJ{Z/
Witness Signature! ( !)

Seal Reg \k@/&\g

Witness Name: T. ARG
Wit Add : - e
Itness ress C(“-’ (C (..€ T {&E‘ "
(CAmnbTom faed
Witness Occupation: Mai) = 5he

HEAD oF Dbl et SELN L
And DI Mos Tad 1wy aFv el

FO\& PEaMd  ox qq.-.n 1S et CE

Page 87

lon_lib1\12683716\5 32
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF ISLINGTON was affixed

in the presence of: =21
o e No—=*
Witness Signature: M

Witness Name: DERZA NRMNennd

Witness Address: “Town fladu (U P+ $
ol ub

AN ke

Assidany Cheel Ereuint, Gro—sinanty )

Witness Occupation:

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH was affixed

in the presence of: M l M&\U« H"Mf’g

Witness Signature: i

Witness Name: /‘/]/’iﬁ'ﬁ H&aed
Witness Address: /!/f"wﬂ [4aie &Yzik@}\_/

Witness Occupation: Lo Leg  TOM -~

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM was affixed

in the presence of; P

Witness Signature: “,”};f’!, L U 65
.é' 1/ i .

Witness Name: /’

Heten GLAss

Witness Occupation:

Page 88
lon_lib1\12683716\5 33
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF MERTON was affixed

in the presence of:

Witness Signature:m Qluinrs

Witness Name'rc\%iol_l\ R\ s

Witness Address &\@{d Wj\,& b1C g’ HQMV

‘/J-EZV\ SM‘\-— B
Witness Occupation UE&[ u:;ﬁ?( _ T-QQ‘N". A CLV\OK(-‘QZ

P EN’?W

1227372

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF NEWHAM was affixed

in the presence of: / /
wit i e: ,//4/

Witness N : ﬁl_/f?‘t-’nﬁf( 4([5'”4}"

Witness/Address:

Witnéss Occupation:

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have executed this as a Deed the day and year first before
written

THE CORPORATE SEAL OF

THE MAYOR AND BURGESSES OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF REDBRIDGE
was hereunto affixed in the presence

St St Sl St

of:-
Mayor ﬁ :
Borough Solicitor & Secretary
¢ AL
Page ~
lon_libi\12683716\5 34

11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF SOUTHWARK was affixed

in the presence of:

Witness Signature:

Witness Name: KATKAR INE geey

Witness Address: 70 lb O ToeceY il
LonmbDon Set

Witness Occupation: SoLICITOR

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON was affixed

in the presence of: %'—\

Witness-Signature:
Tauytn

Witness Name: f?—v\ﬂww\m 66’"“:&"&

Withess Address:

Witness-Occupation:

Executed as a deed when the seal of i P;fﬁ .
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS was affixed —_— C&i};"‘ﬁf

in the presence of:  —&—t4HeES Q&Q\F'ﬁu\)'\(&

‘4
X
Witness Signature: 6/77&5"‘4‘ T¢]51 330

Witness Name: —K pmc =5 Svg HAv£s

Witness Address: —Zro—ter—gzar—fRerftd—H LD “eisikly Plge Ei4 284

e

Witness Occupation:  —Ace aummaatT O1AfcToRkTE  [Busirmss }—hm,ﬁgm

Page 90
lon_lib1\12683716\5 35
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDCN BOROQUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST was affixed

in the presence of:

Witness Signature: 'd/g,JWUA/)\’

Witness Name: Je Al
Witness Address: Wi dlaaws N tha
Gok Qoo favkaa ELT WIF
EAD UF CUMMERUIAL LAW FUH
FIEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Witness Occupatto

AAET

Executed as a deed when the seal of
LONDON BOROUGH OF RICHMOND UPON THAMES was affixed

in the presence of:

Witness Signature:%&&ygllw&\’\ﬂ‘—

Witness Name: FPQ%@\_& ‘Q\\Q\)\.,O'N
Witness Address! A AT, bTC&Hﬂ 'b(’—"’ AYA

e U A SM"I--
Witness Occupation: }.&\M\\EQ \J\CAV\QL\'Q %
E‘N\@ﬁ)- wy & (‘)W

™
ot
%)

s¥[es

Executed as a deed when the seal of
ROYAL BOROUGH OF GREENWICH was affixed

in the presence of:

Witness Signature: &/ C Z

Witness Name: /ﬁu(’r&‘tr_ ,,aam
Witness Address: fb&wv t e baddlcinc o/ (Vo217 £ SIS & PPuu

Witness Occupation: Dz, Ay

Page 91

lon_lib1\12683716\5 36
11 September 2015



Executed as a deed when the seal
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA was affixed 6’5{1‘}

: in the presence of:

] Witness Signature:
; >
Witness Name:
i

s
/ 1, Witness Address:

Witness Occupation:
Tle (pumon Seac oF tue Mayor fWD
Botgesses OF fat Eovie botougHd oF EESy Jepsence o
An) FENED Y As fesk
D CHerseA Laat Hetgoodo A UW An) r‘ru?uutfiv} ohrICt

The Common Seal of THE MAYOR AND BURGESSES of
THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
was hereunto affixed to this deed in the presence of :

\lbe ™™ oo
% / /%/ Corporate Solicitor

Executed as a deed when the seal of
WANDSWORTH LONDON BOROQUGH COUNCIL was affixed

Shamn gmggx
in the presence of: MALT W XTI

Witness Signature: W‘
Witness Name: ML—OF M

Witness Address: (i x M

Witness Occupation: M W‘NXN (¢
| FOR DIRECTOR OF ADMINSTRATION

o s A s

ln‘33|3

Page 92
lon_lib1\12683716\5 37
11 September 2015



/

Executed as a deed when the seal of -
WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL was )fﬂ/:;

//”

in the presence of.
.r’/

Witness Signature: :/,,
Witness NamE'/
Witnes A(cﬁ;s:

tness Occupation:

_(th: CVIWIoY) S€ A bz *’-— THE LD(&D
MAYCK AND CiTi2 a\« 5 CFTHE CiTY ofF
WEST WINSTER  Wag Vet ur] L_,: “’f‘( KnO’ bu

Oider v he (Nes 2N K @f :

’@Q (/ / C/L/

a6 |
i""“'"?“@"“i Ay tnoneed offee
——
|22066 Principal Solicitor |
Page 93
lon_lib1\12683716\5 38

11 September 2015




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Agenda ltem 7

Council Tax Resolution 2016/17 — Cabinet Proposals
Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to enable the Council to calculate and approve the
Council Tax Requirement for 2016/17, in accordance with the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 as amended by the Localism Act 2011. In addition, the Act
requires Council to determine whether any council tax increase is excessive (that
is in excess of 4%) which would require a referendum to be held.

2. All Members have been supplied with a copy of the proposed budget and
are cordially requested to bring that to the Council meeting.

3. Cabinet on 18 February considered proposals to Council on Hillingdon’s General
Fund revenue budget, Housing Revenue Account budget, Fees & Charges,
Capital Programme, Treasury Management Strategy and London Borough of
Hillingdon’s Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17. The proposals result in a Band D
Council Tax for Hillingdon of £1,112.93, which represents a freeze on Council
Tax at the 2015/16 level.

4. The report to Cabinet is available in the Group Offices, on request to the Head of
Democratic Services or online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=115&MId=2281&Ver=4

5. The Greater London Authority (GLA) precept agreed by the London Assembly on
22 February 2016 adds £276.00 to the amount payable by Hillingdon’s Council
Tax payers. This represents a 6.4% decrease in the GLA portion of Council Tax
compared to 2015/16.

6. Based on the Cabinet’'s proposals, and the GLA precept, the total Band D
Council Tax for 2016/17 will be £1,388.93.

CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS: That:

1 The General Fund revenue budget proposals made by Cabinet be
approved, resulting in a Council Tax requirement for 2016/17 of
£106,585,306;

2 Council note that at its meeting on 14 January 2016 the Council calculated
the amount of 95,770 as its Council Tax Base for the year 2016/17. This
was calculated in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of
Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, as its Council Tax Base for
the year (Item T in the formula in Section 31B (3) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992);

Council — 25 February 2016

Page 95



Hillingdon’s own Council Tax be set at £1,112.93 for a Band D property.
Taking into account the precept levied by the Greater London Authority,
this results in an overall Band D Council Tax of £1,388.93 for the borough;

The following amounts have been calculated by the Council for the year
2016/17, in accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 (the Act):

a) £425,635,706

b) £319,050,400

c) £106,585,306

d) £1,112.93

being the aggregate of the amounts that the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A (2) (a) to
(f) of the Act. (Gross Expenditure including the
amount required for additions to working balances)

being the aggregate of the amounts that the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A (3) (a) to
(d) of the Act. (Gross Income including reserves to be
used to meet Gross Expenditure)

being the amount by which the aggregate at 4 (a)
above exceeds the aggregate at 4 (b) above. This is
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section
31A (4) of the Act, as its council tax requirement for
the year. (Item R under Section 31B of the Act)

being the amount at 4 (c) above divided by Item T (2
above). This is, calculated by the Council in
accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic
amount of its Council Tax for the year. (Council Tax at
Band D for the Council)

The London Borough of Hillingdon Council Tax

Band A Band B Band C Band D
£741.95 £865.61 £989.27 £1,112.93
Band E Band F Band G Band H
£1,360.25 £1,607.57 £1,854.88 £2,225.86

being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at
4 (d) above by the number which, in the proportion set
out in Section 5 (1) of the Act, is applicable to
dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided
by the number which in that proportion is applicable
to dwellings listed in valuation Band D. This is
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section
36 (1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into
account for the year in respect of categories of
dwellings listed in different valuation bands;

Council — 25 February 2016

Page 96




10

11

12

13

14

Council note that for the year 2016/17 the Greater London Authority and
its functional bodies have stated the following amounts in precepts.
These have been issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of
the Act, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:

The Greater London Authority Precept
Band A Band B Band C Band D
£184.00 £214.67 £245.33 £276.00
Band E Band F Band G Band H
£337.33 £398.67 £460.00 £552.00

The Council has calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 4
(e) and 5 above. The Council in accordance with Section 30 and 36 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992 hereby sets the Council Tax for the
year 2016/17 for each category of dwelling below:

Total Council Tax 2015/16
Band A Band B Band C Band D
£925.95 £1,080.28 £1,234.60 £1,388.93
Band E Band F Band G Band H
£1,697.58 £2,006.24 £2,314.88 £2,777.86

The Housing Revenue Account budget proposals made by Cabinet be
approved;

The Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 6 of the attached report to
Cabinet be approved;

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Annual Investment
Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Statement for 2016/17 to
2020/21 as set out in Appendix 9 of the attached report to Cabinet be
approved;

The Efficiency Strategy for the 2016/17 year as detailed in Appendix 10 of
the attached report to Cabinet be approved,;

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 as
set out in Appendix 11 of the attached report to Cabinet be approved;

The proposals for Fees and Charges and housing rents for both the
General Fund and Housing Revenue Account set out in Appendix 12 of
the attached report to Cabinet be approved,;

The Council Tax Discount for Older People be retained at 4.88% of
Hillingdon’s element of the Council Tax;

Council note the Corporate Director of Finance’s comments regarding his
responsibilities under the Local Government Act 2003;

Council — 25 February 2016

Page 97



15

16

17

Council authorises the Corporate Director of Finance to approve all
virements after 31 March 2016 relating to the 2015/16 financial year of any
value beyond the levels currently delegated to Corporate Directors
necessary to the closure of accounts, within the deadline set for the
2015/16 financial year;

Council (as set out in Schedule G of the Constitution - Budget and Policy
Framework Procedure Rules) resolves that Cabinet may utilise the general
reserves or balances or approve virements between the General Fund
budget, Housing Revenue Account budget or Capital budgets during the
MTFF financial years 2016/17 to 2020/21 in respect of those functions
which have been reserved to the Cabinet in Article 7 of the Constitution;

Council confirm that the Council’s relevant basic amount of Council Tax
for 2016/17 is not excessive in accordance with principles approved under
Section 52ZB Local Government Finance Act 1992 and therefore a
referendum will not be triggered.

Council Tax Referendums

7.

Schedule 5 of the Localism Act 2011 inserted into the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 Chapter 4ZA of Part 1 makes provision for a Council Tax
referendum to be held if an authority increases its relevant basic amount of
Council Tax in excess of principles determined by the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government. Section 41 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 amended Chapter 4ZA of Part 1 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 by imposing new obligations on the Council.
These include a requirement that as soon as is reasonably practicable after
determining that it is required to hold a referendum in relation to its relevant
basic amount of Council Tax for the financial year, the Council must notify that
fact in writing to any body that has issued a levy or a special levy to it for the
financial year.

The Secretary of State has determined the principles for the year 2016/17 under
section 52ZC (1) of the Local Government Act 1992 that a Council Tax increase
will be excessive if the authority's relevant basic amount of Council Tax for
2016/17 is 4% or more than 4% greater than its relevant basic amount of
Council Tax for 2015/16. This 4% threshold for excessive increases includes
the 2% additional flexibility available to local authorities with responsibility for
providing adult social care.

The relevant basic amount of council tax as calculated is the same as the Band
D Council Tax for Hillingdon and if the proposals within this report are approved
there will be no increase in the Council Tax level between 2015/16 and 2016/17
and is therefore not excessive.

Financial Implications

10.

This is a financial report and the comments of Corporate Finance are contained
throughout.

Council — 25 February 2016

Page 98



Legal Implications

11. The full advice of the Borough Solicitor is set out in the attached report. The
Borough Solicitor confirms that the calculations set out in this report fully accord
with all necessary statutory requirements.

12. As is mentioned in the body of the report, the Local Government Finance Act
1992 has been amended by both the Localism Act 2011 and section 41 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Local authorities are now required to
hold a referendum if there is an increase in the relevant basic amount of Council
Tax of 4%, or more than 4%, in 2016/17 compared to the relevant basic amount
of Council Tax for 2015/16.

13. The Cabinet's proposals for the 2016/17 Council Tax requirement, as set out in
the attached report, do not require a referendum to be held and therefore the
notification requirements set out in section 41 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act do not apply.

14. Finally, Members must have regard to section 106 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992. This provides that a Member who has not paid an amount
due in respect of Council Tax for at least two months after it becomes payable,
may not vote on matters concerning the level of Council Tax or the
administration of it. Therefore any Council Members who are more than two
months in arrears with their Council Tax payments must make a declaration to
this effect at the beginning of the Council meeting.

Background Documents: None

Council — 25 February 2016

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Report of the Head of Democratic Services
	6 London Pensions Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV)
	160225 - CIV App1 Articles of Ass'n
	160225 - CIV App2 Shareholder Agrmt

	7 General Fund Revenue Budget, Housing Revenue Account and Capital Programme 2016/2017

